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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

After three very difficult years, the hotel industry began in 2004 what
most industry experts predict will be a multi-year recovery. Interstate

took advantage of the rebound, more than doubling net income after

non-recurring items, special charges and discontinued operations, and
is well-positioned to maximize the opportunities that lie ahead.

Interstate responded positively to the hotel rebound on a number of fronts:

+ adding a significant number of new contracts,

- improving results at the hotels we manage,

« strengthening our balance sheet, and

+ making strides to execute our strategy of diversifying our earnings stream 'through expanded ownership of hotels.

We are encouraged by our success in 2004 and by the positive outlook for the industry for at least the next
several years. We will focus on three primary areas in 2005 and the years ahead:

1. MAXIMIZING OUR OWNERS' RETURNS

Our core business is, and will remain, independent, third-party hotel management. We currently perform manage-
ment services for more than 60 ownership groups. The managed portfolios range in size from one to 72 hotels.

In 2004, we delivered to our owners on a same-store basis revenue per available room (RevPAR) growth of 6.9
percent, a key indicator of a hotel’s health. Strong hotel performance drove significant improvement in incentive
fees, increasing them to $10.2 million in 2004, up from $6.4 million in 2003.

We have two compelling advantages over other independent management companies —our size and geographic
diversity — which allow us to provide more expertise and services to our hotel owners. Interstate provides an
unparalleled range of services, including marketing, training, legal, human resources, purchasing, accounting and
management systems, state-of-the-art technology support and all aspects of construction and renovation management.

We will bring all these forces to bear on our managed portfolio in 2005, and we are forecasting a 7.0 to 8.0 percent
improvement in 2005 RevPAR. Our goal will be to drive as much to the bottom line as possible by closely
monitoring costs to improve margins, while improving top line revenues. We have completed significant training
programs in revenue management at the regional and property levels, which we believe will help us to aggressively
increase room rate in 2003. Success in these areas will positively impact our base and incentive fees in 2005.

2. SECURING ADDITIONAL MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

In 2004, we added a record 60 new management contracts, led by the acquisition of 54 management contracts
through our purchase of Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc. These properties complement our existing managed
portfolio and significantly strengthen our presence in the Western half of the country, where most of
Sunstone’s hotels are located.

We are the nation’s largest independent hotel management company. The number of contracts we added in 2004
alone would have ranked Interstate as the eighth largest independent hotel management company. We are
arguably the only independent management company that has the infrastructure in place to accommodate this
type of growth. Our 2004 contracts span nearly the full range of segments in the hotel industry, ranging from
select-service through luxury hotels and resorts, and include new properties in the U.S., Canada and Europe.

We have a highly experienced new business development team that seeks to expand relationships with existing
owners, as well as create new relationships. The number of hotels changing hands is accelerating, and the pace
of new hotel development is increasing. Both of these factors create a positive environment for adding to our
hotel management portfolio. We will continue to aggressively pursue opportunities to obtain new contracts for port-
folios and individual properties, both in North America and Europe.

We already have added 24 contracts in 2005, including 22 upscale hotels recently acquired by a partnership
consisting of a private investment fund managed by Goldman Sachs and affiliates of Highgate Holdings.




3. INCREASING OUR INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE

Last year, we announced plans to accelerate and diversify our earnings base through hotel ownership by participation
in real estate investment funds and joint venture relationships. Following the close of 2004, we acquired our first hotel,
the 329-room Hilton Concord in the San Francisco East Bay area. We purchased the hotel with the intent of either
retaining full ownership or transferring ownership to a joint venture or to an investment fund.

The Hilton Concord fits our target property profile of full-service hotels with 200 to 500 rooms under the Hilton,
Marriott, and Starwood brands, located in the top 50 MSAs. We now own two hotels and have ownership interests
in 25 other properties.

We intend for hotel real estate investment to become an increasingly important growth vehicle for Interstate, and
we are exploring a variety of options for co-investing with others to increase our ownership interests. We believe
there is a window of opportunity to acquire hotels and strategically invest in this phase of the real estate cycle.

BRIDGESTREET CORPORATE HOUSING EXPANDS

Our BridgeStreet division had a strong year with robust growth in its major markets, including New York, Washington,
D.C. and Chicago, as well as significant expansion in London. As the economy improves, so do BridgeStreet’s key
market segments — relocation and extended consulting assignments,

During the year, BridgeStreet launched a new brand mission, “Corporate Housing Made Easy,” with a goal of being
the most convenient corporate housing company with which to do business. BridgeStreet was awarded the Provider of
the Year award by the Corporate Housing Provider Association for its innovative programs.

In January 2005, BridgeStreet augmented its popular Licensed Global Partners program with the introduction of
its Global Affinity program, which targets smaller markets with populations under 500,000. BridgeStreet currently
has 18 Licensed Global Partners and two Global Affinity Partners. BridgeStreet sees continued growth opportunities
in 2005 in its existing markets as the economy expands, as well as growth through its licensing programs.

MANAGEMENT TEAM UPDATE

2 In early 2005, former CEO Steve Jorns stepped down from his position due, in part, to his desire to remain in
Texas rather than relocate to Washington, D.C. Steve had taken the CEO position during an important transition
period, and, on behalf of the board, I thank him for his leadership.

I was selected as CEO by our board in February 2005. T have been a member of the board since the merger
between MeriStar Hotels & Resorts and Interstate Hotels Corporation, where I was chairman and CEO. 1 have a
thorough working knowledge of the company and look forward to leading it into the future.

We recently promoted Paul Burke to president, hotel operations. He will oversee Interstate’s hotel operations, plus
several operating support functions. Our team is in place, and we have the depth and expertise to maximize the
opportunities available to us as the hotel industry recovery accelerates.

We believe the outlook for the hotel industry and Interstate is extremely positive for 2005 and beyond. The hotel
industry is in the midst of a multi-year rebound with significant upside potential still ahead. We are focusing on
flow-through for our owners, and we will capitalize on the benefits that our size and distribution afford us.

We anticipate substantial RevPAR improvement at our existing managed hotels, and are aggressively pursuing new
management contracts. We continue to pursue opportunities to participate in real estate ownership, which will allow
us to expand and diversify our earnings base. All factors point to a very positive 2005.

The progress we made in 2004 and what we expect to achieve in 2005 are due in large part to the efforts of the 32,000
fellow associates who provide a combination of hard work, inventiveness and a genuine desire to take care of guests.
With their continued dedication and support, I am confident that 2005 will be a major step forward for Interstate.

Sincerely,

2 _

Thomas F. Hewitt

Chief Executive Officer
Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc.

April 2005
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS (dollars in thousands)

Background

On July 31, 2002, MeriStar Hotels & Resorts, or MeriStar, and Interstate Hotels Corporation, or Old
Interstate, merged, and MeriStar changed its name to “Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc.,” or Interstate. The
transaction was a stock-for-stock merger of Old Interstate into MeriStar in which Old Interstate stockholders
received 4.6 shares of MeriStar common stock for each share of Old Interstate stock outstanding. Holders of
MeriStar common stock and partnership units in its operating partnership continued to hold their stock and
units following the merger. In connection with the merger, the holders of Old Interstate’s convertible debt
and preferred stock converted those instruments into shares of MeriStar common stock. Immediately
following the merger, we effected a one-for-five reverse stock split.

In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, we treated the merger as a
purchase for financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations,” Old Interstate was considered the acquiring
enterprise for financial reporting purposes. Old Interstate established a new accounting basis for MeriStar’s
assets and liabilities based upon their fair values as of July 31, 2002, the effective date of the merger. We
accounted for the merger as a reverse acquisition, with Old Interstate as the accounting acquirer and MeriStar
as the surviving company for legal purposes.

The consolidated financial statements for the period January 1, 2002 through July 31, 2002, include the
historical results of operations of Old Interstate, the accounting acquirer. After our merger on July 31, 2002,
the financial statements include the operating results of the combined entity, Interstate Hotels & Resorts,
Inc.

Business Overview

General — We are the largest independent U.S. hotel management company not affiliated with a hotel brand,
measured by number of rooms under management. We manage a portfolio of hospitality properties and
provide related services in the hotel, corporate housing, resort, conference center and golf markets. We also
own one hotel property and hold non-controlling equity interests in 11 joint ventures, which hold ownership
interests in 27 of our managed properties, as of December 31, 2004. Our portfolio is diversified geographically
and by franchise and brand affiliations. The related services we provide include insurance and risk
management services, purchasing and project management services, information technology and telecommu-
nications services and centralized accounting services.

We have two operating segments, hotel management and corporate housing. Each is managed separately
because of its distinct products and services. '

Our subsidiary operating partnership indirectly holds substantially all of our assets. We are the sole general
partner of that operating partnership. As of December 31, 2004, we also own over 99% of the limited
partnership interests in the partnership. The outside ownership interests are reflected in minority interests on
our balance sheet at December 31, 2004. The partnership agreements gives us, as the general partner, full
control over the business and affairs of the partnership.

Revenue — Our revenue consists of:

» management fee revenue, which consists of fees received under our management agreements and includes
termination fees as they are earned;

~» corporate housing revenue, which consists of revenues from our BridgeStreet corporate housing division;

* lodging revenue, which consists of rooms, food and beverage and other department revenues from our
owned hotel; and

» other revenue, which consists of insurance revenue from Northridge Insurance Company, purchasing
revenue, accounting fees, technical services revenues, information technology support fees, and other fees.
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We employ the staff at our managed properties. Under our management agreements, the hotel owners
reimburse us for payroll, benefits, and certain other costs related to the operations of the managed properties.
Emerging Issues Task Force, (“EITF”) No. 01-14, “Income Statement Characteristics of Reimbursements
for Out-of-Pocket Expenses,” establishes standards for accounting for reimbursable expenses in our income
statement. Under this pronouncement, the reimbursement of payroll, benefits and certain other property costs
is recorded as “other revenue from managed properties,” with a corresponding expense recorded as “other
expenses from managed properties” in our statements of operations.

Operating Expenses — Our operating expenses consist of operating expenses by department and undistributed
operating expenses. Operating expenses by department include expenses associated with our corporate
housing division and our lodging operations. Corporate housing expenses include lease payments for
apartments, furniture costs, utility costs, housekeeping costs, and costs associated with our field staff. Lodging
expenses include costs associated with rooms, food and beverage and other department expenses and property
operating costs related to our owned hotel.

Undistributed operating expenses include the following items:

+ administrative and general expenses, which are associated with the management of hotels and corporate
housing facilities and consist primarily of expenses such as corporate payroll and related benefits, operations
management, sales and marketing, finance, legal, information technology support, human resources and
other support services, as well as general corporate expenses;

« depreciation and amortization; and

» other costs, such as merger and integration costs, asset impairments and other write-offs, restructuring
charges and other costs that are not allocable to hotel management or corporate housing.

Insurance and Risk Management — We make available certain insurance coverage to our managed hotels
under the terms of each individual management agreement. This insurance is arranged through third-party
carriers. Northridge Insurance Company, our subsidiary, reinsures a portion of certain of the coverages from
these third-party primary insurers. These policies provide for layers of, coverage with minimum deductibles
and annual aggregate limits. These policies are for coverage relating to innkeepers’ losses (general/
comprehensive liability), garagekeeper’s legal liability, and real and personal property insurance.

All accounts of Northridge are classified with assets and liabilities of a similar nature in our consolidated
balance sheets. Amounts restricted due to statutory requirements consist of cash and cash equivalents of
$3,000 and $1,421 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These amounts are included in restricted
cash in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The consolidated statements of operations include the
insurance income earned and related insurance expenses incurred. The insurance income earned is included
in other fees in the consolidated statements of operations.

We are liable for costs of the IHC Employee Health and Welfare Plan, which was closed in March 2004 and
provided certain employees with group health insurance benefits. We expect the runoff liability to
approximate $674 as of December 31, 2004. These amounts are recorded as liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Our Associates Benefits Choices plan provides healthcare benefits for the majority of our employees. The
estimated extended liability reserve for this plan was approximately $7,339 as of December 31, 2004. The
majority of this liability is related to property-level employees, the cost of which is reimbursed to us by the
hotel owners. In addition, Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary, maintains benefit
plans for all of its employees at the property level. The estimated extended liability reserve for these plans was
$9,246 at December 31, 2004. These amounts are reflected as liabilities on our balance sheet.

Recent Events

Acquisition of Management Company — On October 26, 2004, we entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement
with Sunstone Hotel Investors, Inc., (“Sunstone REIT’) a Maryland corporation; Sunstone Hotel Partner-
ship, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company; Sunstone Hotel Investors, LLC, a Delaware limited
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liability company; Sunstone Hotel TRS Lessee, Inc., a Delaware corporation; (collectively the “Sunstone
Parties”) and Sunstone Hotel Properties, a Colorado corporation (“SHP”). Under the Stock Purchase
Agreement we acquired SHP, the hotel manager for the Sunstone Parties concurrently with the completion of
Sunstone REIT’s initial public offering of common stock on October 26, 2004. The Stock Purchase
Agreement includes customary representations and warranties, as well as an obligation by the Sunstone
parties to indemnify Interstate and SHP for liabilities arising prior to the acquisition. The purchase price was
$8,000, of which $6,000 was paid in cash at closing on October 26, 2004 and $2,000 is due on December 31,
2005. In connection with the acquisition, SHP entered into new management contracts with respect to its 54
managed hotels, of which 50 hotels are owned by Sunstone REIT.

Joint Venture Disposition — On January 6, 2003, our joint venture San Diego Bridgeworks, LLC, sold Hilton
San Diego Gaslamp. Our total proceeds are expected to be approximately $4,400, of which we have received
$2,900 as of March 1, 2005.

Debt Refinancing — On January 14, 2005, we entered into an amended and restated senior secured credit
facility with various lenders, and SG Americas Securities, LLC as the lead arranger. The new senior secured
credit facility will replace our prior senior secured credit facility and subordinated term loan. The amended
and restated senior secured credit facility provides aggregate loan commitments of a $53,000 term loan and a
$55,000 revolving credit facility. In addition, we have the ability to increase the revolving credit facility and/or
the term loan by up to $50,000, in the aggregate, by seeking additional commitments from lenders. The
facility is scheduled to mature on January 14, 2008. Initially, we borrowed $87,200, consisting of $53,000 of
term loans and $34,200 in revolving borrowings to repay $40,000 outstanding under a subordinated term loan
and $43,500 outstanding under our prior credit facility as well as fees and expenses related to the repayments
and the new credit facility. We expect to write off approximately $2,000 in deferred financing costs.

We will pay interest on our borrowings at an interest rate under the revolving credit facility ranging from
LIBOR plus 325 to 350 basis points and at an interest rate under the term loan ranging from LIBOR plus 450
to 550 basis points, with both rates varying depending on the result of certain financial tests. As of January 14,
2005, based on those financial tests, borrowings under the revolving credit facility bore interest at a rate of
LIBOR plus 350 basis points, and the term loan bore interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 550 basis points.

As with the prior facility, the debt under the amended credit facility is guaranteed by certain of our existing,
wholly owned subsidiaries and secured by pledges of ownership interests, owned hospitality properties, and
other collateral that was not previously prohibited from being pledged by any of our existing contracts/
agreements. Our new credit facility contains covenants similar to the old credit facility that include
maintenance of financial ratios at the end of each quarter, compliance reporting requirements and other
customary restrictions. '

Hotel Acquisition — On February 14, 2005, we acquired the 329-room Hilton Concord in San Francisco,
California, East Bay. The purchase price was $29,150, or $88.6 a room. We financed a portion of the
acquisition with a $19,000 mortgage loan provided by Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company. The
balance of the acquisition price was funded with a combination of cash on hand and borrowings under the
Company’s credit facility. The purchase of the hotel increased our leverage and decreased our liquidity.
Therefore, on February 4, 2005, we amended and restated our senior secured credit facility in order to give us
greater flexibility on the related covenant tests. This amendment is effective through May 135, 2005, at which
time we will be required to be in compliance with the original covenants.

Hurricanes in Florida — During August and September 2004, Florida experienced several strong hurricanes
that damaged or closed 10 properties we manage. We are currently in negotiations with our insurance
provider to recover our losses in management fees under our business interruption insurance policies. We are
entitled to recover management fees for the time period the hotels were partially or completely closed and for
the time period after the hotels re-opened, but were not operating at historical levels. We will recognize
revenues when we have finalized our negotiations, which we do not believe will occur until late 2005 or early
2006.
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Related Party Transactions

Related parties, as defined in SFAS 57 “Related Party Disclosures,” include MeriStar Hospitality, the hotels
included in our real estate joint ventures, and a small number of our hotels that are affiliated with certain of
our directors. Total management fees from related parties amounted to $31,180, $30,254, and $14,431 for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. See Note 14 of our consolidated financial
statements for further discussion.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and all our
consolidated subsidiaries. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the
date of our financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Application of these policies involves the exercise of judgment and the use of assumptions as to future
uncertainties and, as a result, actual results could differ from these estimates. We evaluate our estimates and
judgments, including those related to the impairment of long-lived assets, on an ongoing basis. We base our
estimates on experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. All of our significant accounting policies are disclosed in the notes to our consolidated
financial statements. The following represent certain critical accounting policies that require us to exercise our
business judgment or make significant estimates.

« the evaluation of impairment of certain long-lived assets and intangible assets with determinable lives;
« the evaluation of impairment of goodwill;

- estimation of valuation allowances, especially those related to deferred income tax assets and receivables; 7
and

 revenue recogaition.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
values of long-lived assets (which include our intangible assets with determinable useful lives) may be
impaired, we perform an analysis to determine the recoverability of the asset’s carrying value. We make
estimates of the undiscounted cash flows from the expected future operations of the asset. If the analysis
indicates that the carrying value is not recoverable from future cash flows, the asset is written down to
estimated fair value and an impairment loss is recognized. Any impairment losses are recorded as operating
expenses.

We review long-lived assets for impairment when one or more of the following events have occurred:

* current or immediate short-term (future 12 months) projected cash flows are significantly less than the
most recent historical cash flows; '

« a significant loss of management contracts without the realistic expectation of a replacement;

« the unplanned departure of an executive officer or other key personnel, which could adversely affect our
ability to maintain our competitive position and manage future growth;

« a significant adverse change in legal factors or an adverse action or assessment by a regulator, which could
affect the value of the goodwill or other long-lived assets; or

« events that could cause significant adverse changes and uncertainty in business and leisure travel patterns.

Impairment of Goodwill — In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
annually, or as circumstances warrant, we perform an analysis to determine whether the goodwill carrying
value has been impaired. To test goodwill for impairment, we perform an analysis to compare the fair value of
the reporting unit to which the goodwill is assigned to the carrying value of the reporting unit. We make
estimates of the discounted cash flows from the expected future operations of the reporting unit. If the



analysis indicates that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, we do an analysis to
compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The
implied fair value of the goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to all the
assets and liabilities of that unit as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination. The
excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the
implied fair value of the goodwill. If the implied fair value of the goodwill is less than the carrying value, an
impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. Any impairment losses are recorded as
operating expenses. Aside from testing upon the occurrence of trigger events, we also test goodwill for
impairment annually during our fourth quarter. We did not recognize any impairment losses for goodwill in
2004, 2003 or 2002.

Valuation Allowances — We use our judgment in determining our provision for income taxes, our deferred tax
assets and liabilities, and any valuation allowance recorded against our deferred tax assets. At December 31,
2004, we have a valuation allowance of $13,600 to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount that we
believe is more likely than not to be realized. This is an allowance against some, but not all, of our recorded
deferred tax assets. We have considered estimated future taxable income and prudent and feasible ongoing
tax planning strategies in assessing the need for a valuation allowance. Our estimates of taxable income
require us to make assumptions about various factors that affect our operating results, such as economic
conditions, consumer demand, competition and other factors. Our actual results may differ {from these
estimates. Based on actual results or a revision in future estimates, we might determine that we would not be
able to realize additional portions of our net deferred tax assets in the future; if that occurred, we would record
a charge to the income tax provision in that period.

The utilization of our net operating loss carryforwards will be limited by the provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code. The valuation allowance we recorded included the effect of the limitations on our deferred tax assets
arising from net operating loss carryforwards.

We record an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable based on our judgment in determining the ability and
willingness of hotel owners to make required payments. Our judgments in determining customer ability and
willingness to pay are based on past experience with hotel owners and our assessment of the current and
future operating environments for hotel owners. If a customer’s financial condition deteriorates or a
management contract is terminated in the future, this could decrease a hotel owner’s ability or obligation to
make payments. If that occurred, we might have to make additional allowances, which could reduce our
earnings.

Revenue Recognition — We earn revenue from hotel management contracts and related services, corporate
housing operations and operations of our wholly owned hotel. Our management and other fees consist of base
and incentive management fees received from third-party owners of hotel properties and fees for other
related services we provide.

Through the second quarter of 2002, we had recorded incentive management fees in accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,” and Method No. 2 of EITF
Topic No. D-96, “Accounting for Management Fees Based on a Formula” in which incentive management
fees are accrued as earned based on the profitability of the hotel, subject to the specific terms of each
individual management agreement. The application of Method No. 2 resulted in the accrual of incentive
management fees during interim reporting periods throughout the annual measurement period. The accrual
would be reduced or eliminated in subsequent interim reporting periods if the profitability of the hotel missed
performance thresholds later in the annual measurement period.

In the third quarter of 2002, with an effective date of January 1, 2002, we began recording the incentive
management fees in the period that it is certain the incentive management fees are earned, which for annual
incentive fee measurements is typically in the last month of the annual contract period. This newly adopted
accounting principle is preferable because the new method eliminates the potential that incentive manage-
ment fee revenue will be recognized in one interim reporting period and reduced or eliminated in a future
interim reporting period. This methodology is designated as Method No. 1 in EITF Topic No. D-96.
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Method No. 1 is the Securities and Exchange Commission Staff’s preferred method of accounting for
incentive management fees.

BridgeStreet recognizes revenue from our corporate housing services in metropolitan markets located in the
United States, the United Kingdom and Paris. We recognize fees when earned in accordance with the
individual leasing contract.

2004 and 2005 Industry Assessment

Hotel operations improved significantly in 2004 as compared with 2003 and 2002. Through the end of 2003,
the sluggish economy, the conflict in Iraq, fear of terrorist acts, health concerns for travelers, and delays and
difficulties in travel due to heightened security measures at airports had a significant negative impact on our
operating results. In 2004, RevPAR improved 6.9%, occupancy rose 2.4% and average daily rate
(ADR) increased 4.5%, all compared to the prior year. (These statistics exclude rooms at 10 Florida
properties that were affected by the recent hurricanes during the third quarter of 2004). These improvements
are primarily attributable to the improvement in the U.S. economy reflecting the increase in the gross
domestic product of 3.9% in 2004. We are encouraged by these improvements and expect that our results of
operations will improve if these trends continue.

In our corporate housing division during 2002 and 2003, the weak economy, the conflict in Iragq, traveler health
concerns due to SARS and fears of terrorism also negatively impacted the demand for corporate relocations
and long-term travel assignments, two primary drivers of our operations. The 12 months ended 2004
demonstrated encouraging improvement compared to 12 months ended 2003, as we continue to focus on
stronger markets such as New York, Washington, D.C., Chicago and London. In addition, we have reduced
our inventory in areas where demand is weak or declining, a strategy that resulted in disposal of the Toronto
market in June 2004, where long-term leases did not permit us to adjust our inventory as demand changed.
Our goal going forward is to shorten the length of our lease commitments where possible and look for more
opportunities to convert higher risk apartment blocks into management arrangements. The disposal of the
Toronto operation eliminated a significant drag on our corporate housing operations.

Our plans to improve our operations include the following:

« Continue to improve the operations of our managed properties, which will generate additional base and
incentive fees for us.

« Secure additional management contracts on quality properties.

« Increase the number of our investments in hotels, resorts and conference centers through the creation of
joint ventures and/or real estate funds, where we will invest alongside other real estate investors and
manage the acquired properties. The goal of these investments is to enable us to increase our equity in
earnings from the profits of these investments, as well as provide revenues from management fees from the
associated properties.

» Improve our inventory management and control costs within our existing markets in our corporate housing
segment, increase our focus on high growth markets such as New York, Washington, D.C., Chicago and
London and increase our sales efforts in our primary national segments. We may also add additional
markets in North America if the conditions are favorable. We will continue to expand the Licensed Global
Partner program in which we license the BridgeStreet name to various corporate housing providers
throughout the U.S.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2003

At December 31, 2004, we managed 306 properties with 68,242 guest rooms, compared to 295 properties with
65,250 guest rooms at December 31, 2003.




Hotels under management increased by a net of 11 properties compared to 2003, as follows:

 In connection with our purchase of Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc., we acquired management contracts for
54 properties, during the fourth quarter of 2004.

» During 2004 MeriStar Hospitality sold 21 properties, 20 of which we no longer manage for the eventual
buyers. In addition, we transitioned 23 other properties out of our system.
Revenues

The following table shows the operating statistics for our managed hotels on a same-store basis for the year
ended December 31, excluding rooms at 10 Florida properties that were affected by hurricanes during the
third quarter of 2004 (dollars not in thousands):

2004 2003 Change
Revenue per available room . ... i i $ 69.07 $64.56 6.9%
Average daily rate ........ ... . i $100.46  $96.10 4.5%
OCCUPANCY ottt 68.8%  672% 2.4%

The following table sets forth operating information with respect to our corporate housing division for the
following years ended December 31. '

Number Average
of Number
Year Markets of Units ADR Occupancy
2004 ... e 18 2,941 $102.16 88.9%
2003 L. e 21 2,884 97.85 78.9

Our total revenue decreased $18,123 to $944,043 for 2004 compared to $962,166 for 2003. Major components
of this decrease were: '

« Revenue from management fees decreased $238, or 0.4%, to $63,945 for 2004. While our RevPAR, ADR,
and occupancy have improved year over year, our revenue decreased slightly due to the sale of 21 properties
by MeriStar Hospitality in the year 2004 compared to 15 properties during 2003. This decrease was
partially offset by an increase in termination fees of $4,118 for 2004 relating mainly to properties sold by
MeriStar Hospitality. In addition, the closing of our Flagstone subsidiary during the fourth quarter of 2003
accounted for approximately $3,637 of the decrease. This decrease was partially offset by the addition of 54
management contracts from our purchase of Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc. in October 2004, which
produced $1,210 of additional revenues during the fourth quarter of 2004.

» Revenue from our corporate housing segment increased by $7,847, or 7.6%, to $110,620 for 2004, compared
with $102,773 for 2003. This increase was attributable to gains in Chicago, New York, Washington, D.C.,
and London, partially offset by the closing of the Raleigh and Detroit markets in the first quarter of 2004
and the disposition of Toronto in June 2004.

» Other revenues decreased $1,025, or 6.6%, from $15,330 for 2003 to $14,305 for.2004. The majority of this
decrease is due to a decrease in insurance revenue of $2,168 from our captive insurance company because
of a reduction in our reinsurance programs. The decrease is offset by additional revenue generated by our
construction management and purchasing division of $564 and additional accounting fees of $485 earned
by Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc.

» Reimbursable expenses, which we record as other revenue and other expense from managed properties
under EITF 01-14, decreased by $24,592, or 3.2%, to $751,892 for 2004, from $776,484 for 2003. While we
had more properties under management at the end of 2004 than at the end of 2003, the average number of
properties under management was lower for 2004 than 2003. Consequently, the amount of reimbursed
hotel employee salaries and other expenses was lower in 2004 than in 2003. In addition, other revenue from
managed properties has been revised and reduced in 2004 and 2003 by $54,800 and $57,306, respectively.
Our statements of operations include an equal and offsetting amount — “Other expenses from managed
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properties” — which have also been revised by the same amounts. These amounts represent the payroll and
related costs of the hotels’ employees, which is contractually reimbursed to us by the hotel owners. The
revisions have no impact on operating income (loss), net income (loss), or earnings (loss) per share.

Operating Expenses by Department

Total operating expenses by department increased $5,949 to $93,603 for 2004 compared to $87,654 for 2003.
Operating expenses by department include lodging expenses from our owned hotel, and operating expenses of
our corporate housing division. This increase is due to increased expenses incurred by our corporate housing
division reflecting higher apartment rental costs and additional costs associated with higher occupancy, offset
by a slight decrease in lodging expenses.

Undistributed Operating Expenses
Undistributed operating expenses include the following items:

Total undistributed operating expenses decreased $2,462, or 2.5%, to $95,637 for 2004, compared to $98,099
for 2003. Factors primarily affecting the decrease were:

« Administrative and general expenses increased by $1,387,.or 2.0%, from $68,760 for the year ended
December 31, 2003 to $70,147 for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was primarily due to
increases associated with Sarbanes-Oxley compliance, negotiations of a proposed transaction that was not
consummated and incentive compensation programs, offset by the closing of our Flagstone subsidiary in
the fourth quarter of 2003, and the discontinued Toronto operations from our corporate housing division.
We also identified and corrected several immaterial errors from the prior periods in the fourth quarter of 11
2004, the net effect of which decreased administrative and general expenses by approximately $439.

« Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by $3,628, or 27.4%, to $9,635 for 2004. This decrease is
primarily due to a large number of management contracts that became fully amortized during the second

. quarter of 2003 and the loss of certain management contracts during 2004 and 2003. This decrease was
partially offset by the increase in purchases of property and equipment during mid-2003 relating to the
relocation of our corporate office.

» There were no merger and integration costs for 2004 compared to $3,816 for 2003 relating to our merger
with Old Interstate.

« Restructuring expenses increased $648 to $4,048 for 2004. In 2003, the restructuring expenses related to
severance costs for certain former corporate personnel. Restructuring charges in 2004 consisted of $3,312
related to severance costs for our former CEO, Paul Whetsell, $570 relating to severance costs for former
corporate personnel and $166 for restructuring within our corporate housing division.

» Asset impairment and write-offs increased $2,947, from $8,860 for 2003, to $11,807 for 2004. During the
first quarter of 2004, we recorded an impairment charge of $563 to reduce the carrying amount of our
investment in MIP Lessee, L.P. and we wrote off $538 of our remaining investment in MRI Houston
Hospitality, L.P. In the fourth quarter of 2004, we determined that the estimated fair value of the
Residence Inn Pittsburgh was less than its carrying value, and we recorded a charge of $2,900 to reduce its
carrying value.

In 2004, write-offs of management contracts were $7,260, compared to $4,072 in 2003, due to the increase in
terminated management contracts, specifically related to the properties sold by MeriStar Hospitality.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we recorded an impairment charge of $4,476 on our investment in FCH/THC
Hotels, L.P. and FCH/IHC Leasing, L.P., reducing the combined net book value of the investment and a
note receivable to zero.




Year ended
December 31,

2004 2003
Management contract write-offs. .. ... ... L $ 7,260 $4,072
Investment IMpairMments ... ... ...t imn it 3,986 4,476
Cost of uncompleted merger. ...t e 459 —
Leasehold improvement write-offs . .......... ... .. .. — 312
Other . o e 102 —
Total . $11,807  $8,860

» Reimbursable expenses, which we record as other revenue and other expense from managed properties
under EITF 01-14, decreased by $24,592, or 3.2%, to $751,892 for 2004, from $776,484 for 2003. While we
had more properties under management at the end of 2004 than at the end of 2003, the average number of
properties under management was lower in 2004 than 2003. Consequently, the amount of reimbursed hotel
employee salaries and other expenses was lower in 2004 than in 2003. In addition, other expenses from
managed properties has been revised and reduced in 2004 and 2003 by $54,800 and $57,306, respectively.
Our statements of operations include an equal and offsetting amount — “Other revenue from managed
properties” — which have also been revised by the same amounts. These amounts represent the payroll and
related costs of the hotels’ employees, which is contractually reimbursed to us by the hotel owners. The
revisions have no impact on operating income (loss), net income (loss), or earnings (loss) per share.

Loss from Discontinued Operations

Loss from discontinued operations decreased $672, to $(1,744) for 2004, from $(2,416) for 2003. Discontin-
ued operations relates to the disposal of the Toronto operation of our corporate housing division in June 2004.
The 2004 loss only reflects operations through the disposition in June 2004 while 2003 results include 12
months of operations.

Net Income (Loss)

Net loss available to common shareholders increased $1,212, to a loss of $(5,663) for 2004, from a loss of
$(4,451) for 2003. The net loss in 2003 included a gain of $13,629 for the extinguishment of debt. There was
no similar item in 2004. Although the amount of our net loss increased in 2004 as compared to 2003, we
experienced improvement in our operations as noted above. Also, net interest expense and equity in losses of
affiliates decreased in 2004 as compared to 2003.

« Net interest expense decreased $2,500, or 24.8%, to $7,600 for 2004, from $10,100 for 2003. We incurred
less interest expense on our senior credit facility as we made repayments of $45,276 in the fourth quarter of
2003, using proceeds from an equity offering. In addition, we incurred less interest expense on our non-
recourse promissory note as we made two principal payments during the third quarter of 2003. In addition,
during the fourth quarter of 2003, in connection with the repayment of a portion of our term loan, we wrote
off approximately $750 of associated deferred financing costs.

« Equity in losses of affiliates decreased $362, or 34.7%, to $(1,056) for 2004, from $(1,618) for 2003. These
losses consist of our proportionate share of the losses incurred through our non-controlling equity
investments in various hotels. This is due to a reduction in losses incurred by our joint venture hotels.

« At December 31, 2002, we had $56,069 of long-term debt under a term loan due to MeriStar Hospitality,
which was due to mature on July 31, 2007. MeriStar Hospitality, seeking additional liquidity, approached
us in late 2002 regarding a negotiated discounted repayment of the MeriStar Hospitality term loan. We
repaid the note for a discounted amount of $42,056 in January 2003. We financed part of the repayment
‘with the proceeds from a $40,000 subordinated term loan and realized a gain on refinancing of $13,629 in
2003 with no similar item in 2004.
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+ Income tax expense (benefit) decreased by $5,459 to a benefit of $(1,781) for 2004, from an expense of
$3,678 for 2003, principally because of the recognition of the gain on extinguishment of debt of $13,629 in
2003.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2002

At December 31, 2003, we managed 295 properties with 65,250 guest rooms, compared to 393 properties with
83,053 guest rooms at December 31, 2002. Although the number of managed properties decreased, our total
revenue for 2003 compared to 2002 has increased. The primary reason for this increase in revenue is due to
the merger of MeriStar and Old Interstate in July 2002; therefore, only five months of revenue for the
combined company is included in 2002, whereas 2003 includes a full year. Prior to the merger on July 31,
2002, Old Interstate managed 141 hotels with 29,752 rooms. Subsequent to the merger, on December 31,
2002, we managed 393 properties with 83,053 rooms.

Revenues

The following table shows the operating statistics for our managed hotels on a same-store basis for the year
ended December 31 (dollars not in thousands):

2003 2002 Change
Revenue per available room . ........ ... .. ... L $64.43 § 66.22 (2.7%)
“Average dailyrate ... $97.75  $100.31 (2.5%)
OCCUPATICY v vttt et e e e e e e 65.9% 66.0% (0.0%)
Our total revenue increased $368,323, to $962,166 for 2003, compared to $593,843 in 2002. Major components
of this increase were: 13

+ Revenue from management fees increased $24,295, from $39,888 for 2002, to $64,183 for 2003. The
primary reason was the increase in managed hotels during the year, resulting from the merger, and
additional contracts acquired since the merger, partially offset by a decrease from the loss of contracts,
including those related to properties sold by MeriStar Hospitality, RFS and others. There is also a decrease
in revenues at the managed hotels due to the decline in revenue per available room as shown above,
primarily due to the continued weakness in the U.S. economy and the impact of the war in Iraq.

» Corporate housing revenue was $102,773 for 2003, compared with $43,068 for 2002. Corporate housing
revenue increased as a result of the merger, as 2002 results include five months as compared with 12 months
in 2003. Corporate housing revenue was fairly consistent when compared to full year 2002 results.

« Other revenues decreased $1,983, from $17,313 for 2002, to $15,330 for 2003. The majority of this is due to
a decrease in insurance income of $917 from our captive insurance company and an overall decrease in the
other fees.

+ Reimbursable expenses, which we record as other revenue and other expense from managed properties
under EITF 01-14, increased by $285,818, or 58.3%, to $776,484 for 2003, from $490,666 for 2002.
Substantially all of this increase is due to the increase in the number of employees and managed properties
resulting from the merger in July 2002. In addition, other revenue from managed properties has been
revised and reduced in 2003 and 2002 by $57,306 and $3,577, respectively. Our statements of operations
include an equal and offsetting amount — “Other expense from managed properties” — which have also
been revised by the same amounts. These amounts represent the payroll and related costs of the hotels’
employees, which is contractually reimbursed to us by the hotel owners. The revisions have no impact on
operating income (loss), net income (loss), or earnings (loss) per share.

Operating Expenses by Department

+ Total operating expenses by department increased $50,551, to $87,654 for 2003, compared to $37,103 for
2002. Substantially all of this increase was due to expenses incurred in our corporate housing division as a
result of the merger. Therefore, the 2002 results include five months as compared with 12 months in
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2003. Corporate housing expenses are fairly consistent when compared to the expenses for the full year 2002
results.

Undistributed Operating Expenses

Total undistributed operating expenses increased $9,688 to $98,099 for 2003 compared to $88,411 for 2002.
Factors primarily affecting the increase were:

» Administrative and general expenses increased by $21,103, from $47,655 for 2002, to $68,760 for 2003,
primarily due to the merger on July 31, 2002,

« Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by $729, from $13,992 for 2002, to $13,263 for 2003,
primarily due to a loss of certain management contracts during the year.

+ Merger and integration costs decreased $5,547 to $3,816 for 2003. These costs included professional fees,
travel, relocation costs and other transition costs.

+ Restructuring expenses decreased $9,214, from $12,614 for 2002, to $3,400 for 2003. In 2002, restructuring
expenses were incurred in connection with the merger, and primarily consist of severance costs for
personnel changes and non-cancelable lease costs associated with the merger. In 2003, the restructuring
expenses relate to severance costs for certain former corporate personnel, again related to the merger.

« No tender offer costs were incurred for 2003 compared to $1,000 for 2002 related to the commencement of
a partial tender offer to purchase 2,465,322 shares of Old Interstate’s Class A Common Stock by Shaner
Hotel Group Limited Partnership and Shaner’s unsolicited proposals to combine the operations of Old
Interstate with Shaner prior to the commencement of the tender offer. These costs were incurred for legal
and professional fees. The tender offer expired May 31, 2002.

 Asset impairments and write-offs increased $5,073, from $3,787 for 2002, to $8,860 for 2003. In the fourth
quarter of 2002, we recorded an impairment charge of $2,704 to reduce the carrying value of our
investment in FCH/IHC Hotels, L.P. and FCH/IHC Leasing, L.P. Similarly, in the fourth quarter of
2003, we recorded an impairment charge of $4,476 on the same investment to reduce the total carrying
value to zero. In 2003, write-offs of management contracts increased to $4,072, compared to $1,083 in 2002,
specifically related to the properties sold by MeriStar Hospitality and the termination of contracts by
Winston. Also in 2003 is a charge of $312, representing the write-off of leasehold improvements relating to
our former corporate office in Washington, D.C., before relocating in July 2003 to Arlington, Va.

« Reimbursable expenses, which we record as other revenue and other expense from managed properties
under EITF 01-14, increased by $285,818, to $776,484 for 2003, from $490,666 for 2002. Substantially all of
this increase is due to the increase in the number of employees and managed properties resulting from the
merger in July 2002. In addition, other expense from managed properties has been revised and reduced in
2003 and 2002 by $57,306 and $3,577, respectively. Our statements of operations include an equal and
offsetting amount — “Other revenue from managed properties” — which have also been revised by the
same amounts. These amounts represent the payroll and related costs of the hotels’ employees, which is
contractually reimbursed to us by the hotel owners. The revisions have no impact on operating income
(loss), net income (loss), or earnings (loss) per share.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations decreased $2,561, to a loss of $(2,416) for 2003, from income of $145 for 2002.
Discontinued operations reflect the disposal of the Toronto operation of our corporate housing division, which
we disposed of in June 2004. The results of these discontinued operations have been reflected in all applicable
periods presented in our historical statements of operations in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
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Net Income (Loss)

Net loss available to common shareholders decreased $34,326, to $(4,451) for 2003, from $(38,777) for 2002.
This decrease is due to improvements in our operations as discussed above, impacted by the following:

» Net interest expense increased $4,507, or 80.6%, to $10,100 for 2003, from $5,593 for 2002 primarily due to
the increase in outstanding debt following the merger, the increase in amortization of deferred financing
fees associated with the merger and the debt refinancing in January 2003. In addition, during the fourth
quarter of 2003, in connection with the repayment of a portion of our term loan, we wrote off approximately
$750 of deferred financing costs associated with the term loan. This amount and the amortization of
deferred financing fees are included in interest expense on our statement of operations.

« Equity in losses of affiliates decreased $791, or 32.8%, to $1,618 for 2003, from $2,409 for 2002. These losses
consist of our proportionate share of the losses incurred through our non-controlling equity investments in
various hotels. In 2002, we recorded approximately $1,837 of equity losses associated with our FCH/ICH
joint venture, whereas in 2003 we recorded approximately $470 in losses prior to our write-off of our
investment in the joint venture. Losses were incurred by the hotels owned by our equity investees due to the
weakness in the U.S. economy during 2002 and 2003.

+ Conversion incentive payment of our convertible notes was a one-time payment to our principal investor
group of $7,307, which was made in 2002 in connection with the merger.

» Gain on refinancing was $13,629 in 2003, compared to $0 for the same period 2002. At December 31, 2002,
- we had $56,069 of long-term debt under a term loan due to MeriStar Hospitality due to mature in 2007.
MeriStar Hospitality, seeking additional liquidity, approached us in late 2002 regarding a negotiated
discounted repayment of the loan. The repayment of $42,056 was completed in January 2003. We financed
part of the repayment with the proceeds from a $40,000 subordinated term loan and realized a gain of 15
$13,629.

» Income tax expense increased by $4,811 to $3,678 for 2003, from a benefit of ($1,133) for 2002. In 2003,
we recorded an adjustment to our foreign tax provision related to acquired businesses, we experienced
foreign losses for which we expect to receive no benefit, we incurred nondeductible expenses incurred as a
result of the merger between Old Interstate and MeriStar in July 2002 and we recorded a valuation
allowance related to tax credits.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Working Capital — We had $13,480 of cash and cash equivalent assets at December 31, 2004, compared to
$7,450 at December 31, 2003, and working capital deficit (current assets less current liabilities) of $1,171 at
December 31, 2004, compared to a working capital deficit of $8,349 at December 31, 2003. This
improvement in working capital of $7,178 resulted primarily from the increase in cash from operations.

Operating Activities — Cash provided by operating activities was $15,497 for the year ended December 31,

2004, compared to cash provided by operating activities of $5,340 during the year ended December 31, 2003.
The increase in cash resulted primarily from the completion of the merger and integration, which reduced

expenses by $3,916 along with improved operating results in 2004,

Cash provided by operating activities was $5,340 for 2003, compared to cash used in operating activities of
$17,513 during 2002. The increase in cash resulted primarily from a reduction in net loss in 2003 and changes
in the accounts payable and accrued liabilities balances. We billed the hotels for insurance that we paid on
their behalf in the fourth quarter of 2003, causing our accounts receivable to increase at December 31, 2003.

Investing Activities — Cash used in investing activities was $9,859 for 2004, compared to $14,992 for 2003.
Major components of this decrease in use of cash are:

» purchases of property and equipment of $2,237 in 2004, compared to $8,696 in 2003.

» costs incurred to obtain management contracts of $8,775 in 2004, compared to $1,686 in 2003. This increase
reflects additions to management contracts during 2004 and the associated costs.
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¢ cash invested in hote_ls of $1,524 in 2004, compared to $2,167 in 2003, which includes investments in our
joint ventures for capital expansion projects in 2004.

« the change in restricted cash, to $3,691 in 2004, from $3,250 in 2003. Our captive insurance company has
restricted cash, which is determined based on statutory requirements and is directly related to premiums
written during the year. We also have restricted cash at our purchasing subsidiary, which represents cash
that our clients have advanced to us for capital projects.

Cash used in investing activities was $14,992 for 2003, compared to cash used in investing activities of $5,023
for 2002. In 2003, we incurred $8,696 of costs related to the relocation of our corporate offices from
Washington, D.C. to Arlington, Va. In addition, during 2003 we entered into a joint venture and contributed
to one of our real estate properties for capital expansion projects. In 2002, we paid merger-related acquisition
costs of approximately $3,486, purchased $1,193 of property and equipment, and invested $1,360 in hotel real
estate. Also in 2002, we acquired $1,766 of cash associated with the merger transaction.

Financing Activities — Cash provided by financing activities was $69 for 2004, which primarily relates to debt
incurred offset by debt repayment and the redemption of all 78,431 preferred operating partnership units for
cash of $1,310. The preferred units were included in minority interests on our balance sheet at December 31,
2003.

Cash provided by financing activities was $8,946 for 2003 compared to net cash used in financing activities of
$9,622 for 2002. This increase in cash was due primarily to proceeds received from a public equity offering of
our common stock in November 2003 of $45,276, net of the underwriting discount, offset by approximately
$1,148 of other expenses we incurred relating to that equity offering. The proceeds of the equity offering were
used to repay long term debt, resulting in a net repayment of $33,900 in 2003, as opposed to a net repayment
of $7,811 in 2002.

Senior Credit Agreement — Effective July 31, 2002, in connection with the closing of the merger between
MeriStar and Old Interstate, we entered into a $113,000 senior credit agreement with a group of banks. The
senior credit agreement consists of a $65,000 term loan due on July 28, 2005 and a $48,000 revolving credit
facility due on July 28, 2005, with a one-year extension at our option. The interest rate on the senior credit
agreement is the 30-day London Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, plus 3.00% to 4.50%, depending upon
the results of certain financial tests. The senior credit facility contains covenants, including maintenance of
financial ratios at the end of each quarter, compliance reporting requirements and other customary
restrictions. At December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with these covenants. At December 31, 2004,
borrowings under the senior credit agreement bore interest at a rate of 5.94% per annum, which is the 30-day
LIBOR plus 3.5%. During the fourth quarter of 2003, using the proceeds from our public equity offering, we
repaid $45,276 of the term loan. We incurred $2,434 and $4,308 of interest expense on the senior credit
agreement for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

On January 14, 2005, we entered into an amended and restated senior secured credit facility with various
lenders. The amended and restated senior secured credit facility provides aggregate loan commitments of a
$53 million term loan and a $55 million revolving credit facility. In addition, we have the ability to increase
the revolving credit facility and/or the term loan by up to $50 million, in the aggregate, by seeking additional
commitments from lenders. The scheduled maturity is January 14, 2008.

We will pay interest on our borrowings at an interest rate under the revolving credit facility ranging from
LIBOR plus 325 to 350 basis points and at an interest rate under the term loan ranging from LIBOR plus 450
to 550 basis points. The actual rate for both the revolving credit facility and the term loan depends on the
result of certain financial tests. As of January 14, 2005, based on those financial tests, borrowings under the
revolving credit facility bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 350 basis points and borrowings under the term
loan bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 550 basis points.

As with the prior facility, the debt under the amended credit facility is guaranteed by certain of our existing
subsidiaries and secured by pledges of ownership interests, owned hospitality properties, and other collateral
that was not previously prohibited from being pledged by any of our existing contracts or agreements.
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As with our previous senior credit facility, our amended and restated credit facility contains covenants that
include maintenance of financial ratios at the end of each quarter, compliance reporting requirements and
other customary restrictions.

On January 14, 2005, we borrowed $87.2 million to repay our existing $40 million subordinated term loan, the
$43.5 million outstanding under our prior senior secured credit facility and for fees and expenses related to the
repayments and the new credit facility. In addition, we entered into an amendment to our new credit facility
on February 4, 2005 in connection with the purchase of the Hilton Concord. This amendment is effective
through May 15, 2005, at which time we will be required to be in compliance with the original covenants.
We are currently reviewing several options and we expect to be in compliance with our covenants by May 15,
2005. As of March 1, 2005, the total availability under our senior credit agreement was $22.5 million.

MeriStar Hospitality Term Loan — MeriStar Hospitality, seeking additional liquidity, approached us in late
2002 regarding a negotiated discounted repayment of the MeriStar Hospitality term loan. The repayment of
$42,052 was completed in January 2003. We financed the repayment with proceeds from a $40,000
subordinated term loan and cash on hand and realized a gain of $13,629.

Subordinated Term Loan — In January 2003, we entered into a $40,000 subordinated term loan that carries a
variable interest rate based on the 30-day LIBOR plus a spread of 8.50%. The subordinated term loan
matures on January 31, 2006, but if the revolving portion of our senior credit facility is extended for an
additional year, which it may be at our option, the maturity of the subordinated term loan could have also
been automatically extended by one year to January 31, 2007. This term loan was subordinated to borrowings
under our senior credit agreement and contained certain covenants, including maintenance of financial ratios
at the end of each quarter, compliance reporting requirements and other customary restrictions. At
December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with these covenants. At December 31, 2004, borrowings under
the subordinated term loan bore interest at a rate of 10.81% per annum. We incurred $4,050 of interest 17
expense on the subordinated term loan for the year ended December 31, 2004. In January 2005 we repaid this
loan with proceeds from the refinancing, as discussed above. We expect to write off approximately $2,000 in
deferred financing costs.

Non-Recourse Promissory Note — In 2001, we entered into a non-recourse promissory note in the amount of
$4,170 with FelCor Lodging Trust (“FelCor”) to fund the acquisition of a 50% non-controlling equity interest
in two partnerships that own eight mid-scale hotels. Interest on the note is payable monthly at the rate of
12% per annum and the outstanding principal balance is due and payable on December 31, 2010. For 2004
and 2003, we incurred $447 and $482, respectively, of interest expense on the promissory note. Accrued
interest payable was $414, as of December 31, 2004.

As of December 31, 2004, the remaining balance on the promissory note is $3,723 and we have written off our
interest in the related partnerships. After notifying FelCor, we suspended further principal and interest
payments on this non-recourse promissory note and accordingly, we are in default under the note. We expect
that we will ultimately transfer ownership of our equity interests in these partnerships to FelCor in return for
the extinguishment of the debt. This note would have no value to a third party.

Sunstone Promissory Note — On October 26, 2004, we entered in to a Stock Purchase Agreement to acquire
Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc., a Colorado corporation (“SHP”), a hotel management company. In
connection with the purchase, we entered into a note with Sunstone Hotels Investors, LLC, for $2,000 that is
due December 31, 2005.

Public Equity Offering — On November 26, 2003, in a public equity offering, we offered 8,500,000 shares of
our common stock, par value $0.01 per share, at a price of $5.25 per share. An additional 300,000 shares of
common stock were offered by our principal investor group. On December 16, 2003, the underwriters
exercised their over-allotment option for an additional 601,900 shares.

Our total proceeds from this equity offering, net of the underwriting discount but prior to deducting other
expenses, amounted to approximately $45,276. We did not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares by the
principal investor group. The net proceeds were used to repay indebtedness under our senior credit facility.
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Shelf Registration Statement — In August 2004, we filed a Form S-3 shelf registration statement registering
up to $150,000 of debt securities, preferred stock, common stock and warrants. The registration statement
also registered the 6,232,716 shares of our common stock held by CGLH Partners I, LP and CGLH
Partners II, LP, which are beneficially owned by certain of our directors. The CGLH Partnerships have the
right to include their shares in the registration statement pursuant to a registration rights agreement they
executed with us at the time of our July 2002 merger with Interstate Hotels Corporation.

Liguidity — We believe that cash generated by our operations, together with borrowing capacity under our
senior credit agreement, will be sufficient to fund our requirements for working capital, required capital
expenditures and debt service for the next 12 months. We expect to continue to seek acquisitions of hotel
management businesses and management contracts and opportunities where we can participate in the
ownership of hotels we manage. We expect to finance future acquisitions through a combination of additional
borrowings under our credit facility and the issuance of equity instruments, including common stock or
operating partnership units, or additional/replacement debt, if market conditions permit. We believe these
sources of capital will be sufficient to provide for our long-term capital needs. On February 4, 2005, we
amended and restated our senior secured credit facility in order to give us greater flexibility on the related
covenant tests. This amendment is effective through May 15, 2005, at which time we will be required to be in
compliance with the original covenants.

Contractual Obligations and Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2004 and the effect that those
obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods:

Payment terms

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years

Senior credit facility — revolving credit facility(a) $ 27,000 $§ — §$27,000 § — § —
Senior credit facility — term loan(a) ........... 16,474 1,625 14,849 — —
Non-recourse promissory note . ................ 3,723 — — — 3,723
Subordinated term-loan(a) ................... 40,000 — —_ 40,000 —
Sunstone promissory note........... ... ..., .. 2,000 2,000 — — —
Non-cancelable apartment leases .............. 56,926 35,116 13,664 5,510 2,636
Non-cancelable office leases .................. 26,425 3,768 10,272 5,250 7,135
Total ............. e e $172,548  $42,509  $65,785  $50,760  $13,494

(a) We refinanced our credit facility and repaid our subordinated term loan on January 14, 2005, as discussed above in “Liquidity and
Capital Resources.” Therefore we do not consider any of these amounts current. Had we not refinanced, the old credit facility would
have been due in July 28, 2006. The following presents our payment terms under the new credit facility.

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
New senior credit facility — revolving credit
facility . ... ... $34,200 $ — $ —  $34,200 $—
New senior credit facility — term loan . ... .. $53,000 $3,750 $10,000  $39,250 $—

Long-Term Debt: For principal repayment and debt service obligations with respect to our long-term debt, see
Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements.

Lease Commitments: We lease apartments for our corporate housing division and office space for our
corporate offices. The leases run through 2014 and are included in the table above.

Management Agreement Commitments: Under the provisions of management agreements with certain hotel
owners, we have outstanding commitments to provide an aggregate of $2,719 to these hotel owners in the
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form of investments or loans, if requested. The timing of future investments or working capital loans to hotel
owners is currently unknown as it is at the hotel owner’s discretion, and not included in the above table.

Letter of Credit: We have a $2,500 letter of credit outstanding from Interstate Operating Co. L.P. and
Northridge Insurance Company in favor of our property insurance carrier. The letter of credit expires on
June 25, 2005.

Equity Investment Funding: In connection with our equity investments in hotel real estate, we are partners or
members of various unconsolidated partnerships or limited liability companies. The terms of such partnership
or limited liability company agreements provide that we contribute capital as specified. The timing and
amount of such contributions of capital, if any, is currently unknown and is therefore not reflected in the
chart set forth above. We have minority interests in 11 hotel real estate limited partnerships and limited
liability companies. We do not guarantee the debt or other obligations of any of these investments.

Redeemable Operating Partnership Units: We had 78,431 preferred units outstanding in our subsidiary
operating partnership, which were held by an affiliate of Mahmood J. Khimji, one of our directors. On May 3,
2004, we redeemed all 78,431 preferred units for cash consideration, totaling $1.3 million at a redemption
price of $16.70 per unit.

Insurance Matters: As part of our management agreement services to a hotel owner, we generally obtain
casualty (workers’ compensation and liability) insurance coverages for the hotel. In December 2002, one of
the carriers we used to obtain casualty insurance coverages was downgraded significantly by rating agencies.
In January 2003, we negotiated a transfer of that carrier’s current policies to a new carrier. We are working
with the prior carrier to facilitate a timely and efficient close-out of the claims outstanding under the prior
carrier’s casualty policies. The prior carrier has primary responsibility for settling those claims from its assets.
If the prior carrier’s assets are not sufficient to settle these outstanding claims, and the claims exceed amounts 19
available under state guaranty funds, we may be required to settle those claims. Although we are indemnified
under our management agreements for such amounts, we would be responsible contractually for claims in
historical periods when we leased (in addition to managed) certain hotels. Based on the information
currently available, we believe the ultimate resolution of this situation will not have a material adverse effect
on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Sunstone: We purchased Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc. on October 26, 2004. As part of the purchase we
assumed the liabilities of that company, which included certain employee-related liabilities such as workers’
compensation and liabilities under a defined benefit pension plan. We are indemnified by Sunstone REIT for
these liabilities. We recorded the liabilities for workers’ compensation and the pension plan on our balance
sheet and recorded a receivable for the same amount from the owner, Sunstone REIT, at the time of the
purchase. In addition, we also have a $5.0 million letter of credit outstanding from Sunstone Hotel Investors,
Inc., for these and other assumed liabilities. To the extent Sunstone REIT would be unable to reimburse us
for these liabilities and they would exceed the amount outstanding on their letter of credit to us, we would be
primarily liable.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on our credit facilities. Our interest rate risk
management objective is to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower
our overall borrowing costs.

Our former senior secured credit facility matured July 31, 2005, with a one-year extension of the revolving
portion at our option. At December 31, 2004, we had borrowings of $43,474 outstanding on the facility.
Interest on the debt is variable, based on the 30-day LIBOR plus a spread of 300 to 450 basis points,
depending on the results of certain financial tests. The senior credit facility bore interest at a rate of 5.94% at
December 31, 2004. We have determined that the fair value of the debt approximates its carrying value. On
January 14, 2005, we entered into an amended and restated senior secured credit facility with various
lenders. SG Americas Securities, LLC was the lead arranger for the new facility. The amended and restated
senior secured credit facility will replace our prior senior secured credit facility and the subordinated term
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loan, The amended and restated senior secured credit facility provides loan commitments for a $53 million
term loan and a $55 million revolving credit facility. In addition, we have the ability to increase the revolving
credit facility and/or the term loan by up to $50 million, in the aggregate, by seeking additional
commitments from lenders. The scheduled maturity on both loans is January 14, 2008.

We will pay interest on our borrowings at an interest rate under the revolving credit facility ranging from
LIBOR plus 325 to 350 basis points and at an interest rate under the term loan ranging from LIBOR plus 450
to 550 basis points. The actual rate for both the revolving credit facility and the term loan depends on the
result of certain financial tests. As of January 14, 2005, based on those financial tests, borrowings under the
revolving credit facility bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 350 basis points and borrowings under the term
loan bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 550 basis points.

As with the prior facility, the debt under the amended credit facility is guaranteed by certain of our existing
subsidiaries and secured by pledges of ownership interests, owned hospitality properties, and other collateral
that was not previously prohibited from being pledged by any of our existing contracts/agreements.

As with our previous senior credit facility, our amended and restated credit facility contains covenants that
include maintenance of financial ratios at the end of each quarter, compliance reporting requirements and
other customary restrictions.

At December 31, 2002, we had $56,069 of long-term debt under a term loan due to MeriStar Hospitality,
which was due to mature on July 31, 2007. MeriStar Hospitality, seeking additional liquidity, approached us in
late 2002 regarding a negotiated discounted repayment of the MeriStar term loan. The repayment of $42,052
was completed in January 2003. We financed the repayment with the proceeds from $40,000 subordinated
term loan and cash on hand and realized a gain of $13,629. The subordinated term loan carries a variable
interest rate, based on the 30-day LIBOR plus a spread of 8.50%. The subordinated term loan matures on
January 31, 2006, but if the revolving portion of our senior credit facility is extended for an additional year,
the maturity of the subordinated term loan will also be automatically extended by one year to January 31,
2007. The remainder of the repayment was funded out of available cash. We have determined that the fair
value of the debt approximates its carrying value.

Concurrent with the closing of our new credit facility, on January 14, 2005, we borrowed $87.2 million to repay
our ex1st1ng $40 million subordinated term loan, the $43.5 million outstanding under our prior senior secured
credit facility and for fees and expense related to the repayments and the new credit facility.

Our non-recourse promissory note to FelCor, with a balance of $3,723, is due on December 31, 2010. Interest
on the note is payable monthly at the rate of 12% per annum. We believe that our non-recourse promissory
note would have no value to a third party. We intend to exchange the non-recourse promissory note for our

equity interests in the related joint ventures. The carrymg value of our investments in these partnerships has

been previously written down to zero.
f

In October 2002, we entered into a $30,000, two-year interest rate swap agreement with a financial institution
in order to hedge against the effect that future interest rate fluctuations may have on our floating rate debt.

. The swap agreement effectively fixed the 30-day LIBOR at 2.50%. This agreement matured on October 1,

2004.

In March 2003, we entered into a $35,000, 22-month interest rate cap agreement with a financial institution in
order to hedge against the effect that future interest rate fluctuations may have on our floating rate debt. The
interest rate agreement capped the 30-day LIBOR at 4.50%. This cap matured on December 31, 2004.

In February 2005, we entered into a $19,000, three-year interest rate cap agreement with a financial institution in
order to hedge against the effect that future interest rate fluctuations may have on our floating rate debt. The
interest rate agreement caps the 30-day LIBOR at 6.65%. This cap is scheduled to mature on March 1, 2008.

Giving effect to our interest rate hedging activities, a 1.0% change in the 30-day LIBOR would have changed
our interest expense by approximately $603 for the year ended December 31, 2004, and by approximately
$940 for the year ended December 31, 2003.
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Our international operations are subject to foreign exchange rate fluctuations. We derived approximately
17.7% and 16.6% of our revenues, excluding reimbursed expenses, from managed properties for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, from services performed in Canada, the United Kingdom,
France, Russia, and Portugal. Our foreign currency translation gains and (losses) were $(34) for the year
ended December 31, 2004, and are included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in our
statement of operations. To date, since most of our foreign operations have been largely self-contained or
dollar-denominated, we have not been exposed to material foreign exchange risk. Therefore, we have not
entered into any foreign currency exchange contracts or other derivative financial instruments to hedge the
effects of adverse fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. In the event that we have large transactions
requiring currency conversion we would reevaluate whether we should engage in hedging activities.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The SEC encourages companies to disclose forward-looking information so that investors can better
understand a company’s future prospects and make informed investment decisions. In this report and the
information incorporated by reference herein, we make some “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1993, particularly statements anticipating future
growth in revenues and cash flow. Any statements in this document about our expectations, beliefs, plans,
objectives, assumptions or future events or performance are not historical facts and are forward-looking
statements. These statements are often, but not always, made through the use of words or phrases such as
“will likely result,” “expect,” “will continue,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,” “projection,”
“would” and “outlook” and other similar terms and phrases. Accordingly, these statements involve estimates,
assumptions and uncertainties that are not yet determinable and could cause actual results to differ materially
from those expressed in the statements. Any forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by
reference to the factors discussed throughout this report and the documents incorporated by reference herein.
In addition to the risks related to our business, the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those described in the forward-looking statements include, among others, the following:

EE N3 LE N3 EE TS
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» economic conditions generally and the real estate market specifically;
» the impact of actual or threatened future terrorist incidents or hostilities;

s the aftermath of the war with Irag, continuing conflicts in that geographic region and related ongoing U.S.
involvement;

+ international geopolitical difficulties or health concerns;

 uncertainties associated with obtaining additional financing for future real estate projects and to undertake
future capital improvements;

» demand for, and costs associated with, real estate development and hotel rooms, market conditions affecting
the real estate industry, seasonality of resort and hotel revenues and fluctuations in operating results;

» changes in laws and regulations applicable to us, including federal, state or local hotel, resort, restaurant or
land use regulations, employment, labor or disability laws and regulations and laws governing the taxation
of real estate investment trusts;

« the impact of weather-related events or other calamities;

« legislative/regulatory changes, including changes to laws governing the taxation of REITs;
» failure to renew essential management contracts or business leases;

« competition from other hospitality companies, pricing pressures;

» variations in lease and room rental rates;

» litigation involving antitrust, consumer and other issues;
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» loss of any executive officer or failure to hire and retain highly qualified employees; and

» other factors discussed under the heading “Risk Factors” and in other filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

These factors and the risk factors referred to above could cause actual results or cutcomes to differ materially
from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made or incorporated by reference in this report. You
should not place undue reliance on any of these forward-looking statements. Further, any forward-looking
statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made and we do not undertake to update any forward-
looking statement or statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement is
made, or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not
possible to predict which will arise. In addition, we cannot assess the impact of each factor on our business or
the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from
those contained in any forward-looking statements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan.and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,

and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended

December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 23
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

(United States), the effectiveness of Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries internal contro} over

financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO),

and our report dated March 16, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and

the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

KPMG LLP

McLean, Virginia
March 16, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, included in Item 9A of the Annual Report on Form 10-K, that Interstate
Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
exXpress an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide teasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that [nterstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Also, in our opinion, Interstate
Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria. established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc. acquired Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc. (Sunstone) in the fourth quarter of
2004 and management excluded from its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, Sunstone’s internal control over financial reporting associated with total
assets of approximately $20 million and total revenues of approximately $1.7 million as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2004, Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Interstate Hotels &
Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of
Sunstone.
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We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004,
and our report dated March 16, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements.

KPMG LLP

McLean, Virginia
March 16, 2005
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INTERSTATE HOTELS & RESORTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31,

2004 2003
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ... ... ... oot $ 13,480 $ 7,450

Restricted cash . . ... .. . e 3,691 3,250

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $3,390 in 2004

and $3,529 00 2003, .. . 33,480 25,531

Due from related parties, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $536 in 2004

and none In 2003 . ... 11,653 14,649
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ............... oot 8,929 9,342
Total CUITENt ASSEtS . . oottt ittt e e e 71,233 60,222
Marketable SECUMIES . . ..ottt et e e e e e 1,706 2,556
Property and equipment, net. ... e 19,981 27,056
Officers and employees notes receivable ......... .. ... i i 83 86
Investments in and advances to affiliates . ......... ... ... .. . . ... ... . .. 12,155 15,825
Notes receivable . . ... 5,180 6,044
Deferred inCOME taXeS. .. ..ottt 18,312 18,673
GoodWill .. . 96,802 92,123
Intangible assets, NEt .. .. ...ttt 51,162 55,338
TOTAL ASSEES . v v v vt e e $276,614  $277,923
LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTERESTS AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

ACCOUNTS PAYADIE . . . ..\ e $ 5651 $ 9,203

Accounts payable — related parties . ......... ... — 433

ACCTUCA EXPBIISES . & o o vt ottt ettt e et e e e 61,003 57,310

Current portion of long-term debt . ........ ... .. i 5,750 1,625

Total current liabilities .. ... .. . 72,404 68,571
Deferred compensation . ... ... ... 1,706 2,556
Long-term debt . ... ... e e e 83,447 84,696

Total Habilities .. ... 157,557 155,823
MINOTitY INTETESES . . o oottt 930 3,388
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued ..... — —
Common stock, $.01 par value; 250,000,000 shares authorized; 30,629,519 and

29,951,334 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003,

TSP IVl .« o o e 307 300
Treas Uy StOCK . oot (69) (69)
Paid-in capital .. ... e 188,865 183,849
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax ......................... 892 837
Accumulated deficit. .. ... . (71,868)  (66,205)

Total stockholders’ equity ... ...t e 118,127 118,712

Total liabilities, minority interests and stockholders’ equity ................. $276,614  $277,923

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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INTERSTATE HOTELS & RESORTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS -
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Revenue: ’
Lodging revenue .. ... ...ttt e $ 3281 $ 339 § 2908
Management fees .. ... ... 32,765 33,929 25,457
Management fees-related parties ............. ... .. .. ... . .l 31,180 30,254 14,431
Corporate housing. . ... 110,620 102,773 43,068
Other revenUe . . .ot e e 14,305 15,330 17,313
192,151 185,682 103,177
Other revenue from managed properties ............ ..ot 751,892 776,484 490,666
TOtal TEVENUE . ... o e e 944,043 962,166 593,843
Operating expenses by department:
Lodging eXpenses .. ..........oouiiiii s 2,011 2,384 2,139
Corporate housing. . ...t 91,592 85,270 34,964
Undistributed operating expenses:
Administrative and general .......... ... . 70,147 68,760 47,655
Depreciation and amortization .............u v 9,635 13,263 13,992
Merger and Integration CoStS . .. ... ..ouur ittt — 3,816 9,363
ReStructuring eXpenses . . . ..o v vttt e e 4,048 3,400 12,614
Tender offer CoStS ... ot — — 1,000
Asset impairments and write-offs ... ... ... .. L 11,807 8,860 3,787
’ 189,240 185,753 125,514
Other expenses from managed properties ........... .. ............... 751,892 776,484 490,666
Total Operating EXpPenSes ... ..o vut vttt 941,132 962,237 616,180 27
Operating income (loss) ................ R : 2911 (71)  (22,337)
INterest iNCOME . . . .. .. it e e e (1,00%) 917) (1,638)
INEEIEST EXPEISE « ottt ettt et et et e e 8,603 11,017 7,231
Equity in losses of affiliates .. ........ .. . . 1,056 1,618 2,409
Conversion incentive payment-convertible notes. ........................ — — 7,307
Gain on refinancing term loan from related party ....................... — (13,629) —
Income (loss) before minority interests and income taxes ................ (5,745) 1,840 (37,646)
Income tax expense (benefit) .......... .. . . i (1,781) 3,678 (1,133)
Minority interest expense (benefit) ... ... ... ... i i (45) 197 (197)
Loss from continuing operations . ...............ooiiiiiieeiininnenen.. (3,919) (2,035)  (36,316)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net ...............coovuvon.. (1,744) (2,416) 145
N L08S .+ v ottt e e (5,663) (4,451)  (36,171)
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock:
Dividends . . . ..o — — 307
ACCTEHION « . vt e e — — 356
Conversion incentive payments . ..., — — 1,943
Net loss available to common shareholders. ............................ (5,663) (4,451)  (38,777)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation gain (loss) ................ N (34) 553 102
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments. . .............ooieinnnieno... 89 433 (251)
Comprehensive LSS .. ... ...t $ (5,608) $ (3,465) $(38,926)
Weighted average number of basic common shares outstanding e, 30,473 21,474 13,563
Basic loss per share from continuing operations ............. ... ........ $ (0.13) $ (0.10) $ (2.87)
Basic earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations. .. .. .. e $ (0.06) $ (0.11) $ 0.01
Basic loss per share ........ . i $ (0.19) § (021) § (2.86)
Weighted average number of diluted shares of common shares outstanding.. . 30,473 21,474 13,563
Diluted loss per share from continuing operations ....................... $ (0.13) $ (0.10) $§ (2.87)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations . ........... $ (0.06) $ (0.11) $§ 001
Diluted loss per share. .. ...t $ (0.19) § (0.21) $ (2.86)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




INTERSTATE HOTELS & RESORTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands)

Accumulated
Other Mandatorily
Comprehensive Redeemable
Common Treasury Paid-in Accumulated Income Preferred
Stock Stock  Capital Deficit (Loss) Total Stock
Balance at January 1,2002 ..................... $§ 57 $ — $64955 $(22977) $ — $ 42,035 § 5,070
Conversion of convertible securities ............ 65 — 31,735 — — 31,800 —
Options exercised . ............ ... ... 2 — 525 — — 527 —
Effect of options accounted for using variable
Plan accounting ............. ...l — — 823 — — 823 —
Shares issued in connection with the merger and
conversion of Interstate shares............... 871 — 37,653 — — 38,524 —
Reverse stock-split. . ............ ... ... ... (792) — 792 — — — —
Vesting of MeriStar stock options ... ........... — — 953 — — 953 —
Issuance of restricted stock ................... 2 — 832 — — 834 —
Treasury shares repurchased .................. — (46) — — — (46) —
Redemption of preferred stock................. — — — — — — (5,070)
Net loss available to common shareholders . ... .. — — — (38,777) — (38,777) —
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax ........... — — — — (149) (149) —
Balance at December 31,2002 ............... ... 205 (46) 138,268 (61,754) (149) 76,524 —
Options exercised ........ ... ... 3 — 662 — — 665 —
Effect of options accounted for using variable
Plan accounting . . ... — — 125 — — 125 —
Conversion of operating partnership units ....... 1 — 704 — — 705 —
Issuance of common stock in equity offering . . . .. 91 — 44,037 — — 44,128 —
Options EXPeNSe. . ... .vvtn e — — 53 — — 53 —
Treasury shares repurchased ................ .. — (23) — - — (23) —
Net loss available to common shareholders . ... .. — — — (4,451) — (4,451) —
Other comprehensive income, net of tax . ....... — — — — 986 986 —
Balance at December 31,2003 ... ............ ... 300 (69) 183,849 (66,205) 837 118,712 —
Options exercised . ......... ... iiii..n. 2 — 815 — — 817 —
Conversion of operating partnership units ....... 1 — 1,095 — — 1,096 —
Additional costs of equity offering.............. — — (69) — — (69) —
. Options €Xpense. . ...t — — 319 — — 319 —
Issuance of restricted stock ................... 4 — 2,856 — — 2,860 —
Net loss available to common shareholders ... ... — — — (5,663) — (5,663) —
Other comprehensive income, net of tax | ....... —_ — — — 55 55 —_
Balance at December 31,2004 .................. $ 307 $(69) $183,865 $(71,368) $ 892 $118,127 § —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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INTERSTATE HOTELS & RESORTS, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities: ‘
Nt LSS oottt e e e $ (5,663) $§ (4,451) $(36,171)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ... ... .. ... ittt 9,685 13,466 14,058
Equity in losses of affiliates ... ... . ... . 1,056 1,618 2,409
Asset impairments and write-offs .. ... ... e 11,807 8,860 3,787
Forgiveness of notes receivable .. ... ... e 60 —_ 1,866
Write-off of fixed assets. . ... — — 1,860
Write-off of deferred financing fees ...... .. ... . . . L — 750 2,465
AT 68 To} 1 B4 11<) (1) O A (45) 197 (197)
Deferred InCOME taXES . .. ...ttt et et e e e e (2,005) 1,131 (2,791)
Amortization of restricted common stock and mandatorily redeemable preferred stock ... .. — — 1,372
Gain on refinancing .. .. ... . — (13,629) —
DT o 1,458 2,018 2,539
Grant of stock for SEVErance . ... ... .. i e 3,181 — —
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations .............. ... il 376 — —
Changes in assets and liabilities: _
Accounts receivable, net ... (17,468) (10,654) 15,217
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ... . ... ... .. it i e 492 4,280 68
Accounts payable .. ... 9,216 4,357 (13,366)
Due from related parties .. ... 3,347 (2,603)  (10,629)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities. ... ........ ... oo .. 15,497 5,340 (17,513) 29
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from the sale of investments ......... ... ... . .. ... . 522 — —
Change in restricted cash ... ... . (441) (1,884) (18)
Purchases of property and equipment ......... ... . . . .. (2,237) (8,696) (1,193)
Purchases of marketable secUrities . ... ... ...t in e — — (2,080)
Costs incurred to obtain management CONTracts . . ... vieeet i, (8,775) (1,686) (620)
Merger-related acquisition COSIS ... ... o i e — — (3,486)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities . ........................ e — — 1,911
Cash acquired in merger transaction ... ... ... i it — — 1,766
Net cash invested for equity investments in hotel real estate ........................... (1,524) (2,167) (1,360)
Change in officers and employees notes receivable, net .. .......... ... ... e 3 287 (301)
Changes in notes receivable, net........ ... .. .. . . 2,593 — —
Change in advances to affiliates, net ........ .. .. . — (846) 248
Deposits and other . ... o e — — 110
Net cash used in investing activities ... .. ... ... ..ttt (9,859) (14,992) (5,023)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt. .. .. ... . . 40,000 104,500 25,000
Repayment of long-term debt . ... ... . e (39,125)  (138,400)  (32,811)
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock ......... .. i i e 751 44,787 527
Cash paid for redemption of preferred operating partnership units. ...................... (1,310) — —
Dividends paid on mandatorily redeemable preferred stock ................ ... ... ... — — (307)
Conversion incentive payments-preferred stock. ....... ... ... . il — — (1,943)
Financing fees paid. . ... ... (247) (1,918) (42)
Common stock repurchased and retired. . ... ... .. ... . . — (23) (46)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .. ......... ... it 69 8,946 (9,622)
Effect of exchange rate on cash ... ... ... ... . . . .. .. 323 1,102 172
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . ................................. 6,030 396 (31,986)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ......... .. ... i 7,450 7,054 39,040
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ........ . ... . . ... i $ 13480 $ 7450 $ 7,054

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. BUSINESS SUMMARY

We are the largest independent U.S. hotel management company not affiliated with a hotel brand, measured
by number of rooms under management. We manage a portfolio of hospitality properties and provide related
services in the hotel, corporate housing, resort, conference center and golf markets. We also own one hotel
property and hold non-controlling joint venture equity interests in 27 of our managed properties at
December 31, 2004. Our portfolio is diversified by franchise and brand affiliations. The related services we
provide include insurance and risk management services, purchasing and project management services,
information technology and telecommunications services and centralized accounting services.

As of December 31, 2004, we managed 306 properties, with 68,242 rooms in 41 states, the District of
Columbia, Canada, Russia and Portugal. As of December 31, 2004, we had 2,941 apartments under lease or
management through our BridgeStreet corporate housing division in the United States, France and the
United Kingdom.

We have two operating divisions, hotel management and corporate housing, both of which are reportable
operating segments. Each division is managed separately because of its distinct products and services.

Our subsidiary operating partnership indirectly holds substantially all of our assets. We are the sole general
partner of that operating partnership. We, our chief accounting officer and certain independent third parties
are limited partners of the partnership. The interests of those third parties are reflected in minority interests
on our balance sheet. The partnership agreement gives the general partner full control over the business and
affairs of the partnership. We own more than 99% of the subsidiary operating partnership.

On July 31, 2002, MeriStar Hotels & Resorts, or MeriStar, and Interstate Hotels Corporation, or Old
Interstate, merged, and MeriStar changed its name to “Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc,” or Interstate. The
transaction was a stock-for-stock merger of Old Interstate into MeriStar in which Old Interstate stockholders
received 4.6 shares of MeriStar common stock for each share of Old Interstate stock outstanding. Holders of
MeriStar common stock and partnership units in its operating partnership continued to hold their stock and
units following the merger. In connection with the merger, the holders of Old Interstate’s convertible debt and
preferred stock converted those instruments into shares of MeriStar common stock. Immediately following
the merger, we effected a one-for-five reverse stock split.

In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, we treated the merger as a
purchase for financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations,” Old Interstate was considered the acquiring
enterprise for financial reporting purposes. Old Interstate established a new accounting basis for MeriStar’s
assets and liabilities based upon their fair values as of July 31, 2002, the effective date of the merger. We
accounted for the merger as a reverse acquisition, with Old Interstate as the accounting acquirer and MeriStar
as the surviving company for legal purposes.

The consolidated financial statements for the period January 1, 2002 through July 31, 2002, include the
historical results of operations of Old Interstate, the accounting acquirer. After our merger on July 31, 2002,
the financial statements include the operating results of the combined entity, Interstate Hotels & Resorts,
Inc.

We manage 72 properties owned by MeriStar Hospitality, a real estate investment trust, or REIT. Our
relationship with MeriStar Hospitality has historically been governed in part by an intercompany agreement.
That agreement provided each of us the right to participate in certain transactions entered into by the other
company. Management fees earned from hotels owned by MeriStar Hospitality are included in management
fees-related parties in the consolidated statements of operations.
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Effective July 1, 2004, MeriStar Hospitality and we agreed to terminate the intercompany agreement. We
believe the termination of the intercompany agreement is an important step in our efforts to pursue our
strategy of increasing our investment in hotels and resorts since we can now pursue real estate investment
opportunities without first having to offer the opportunity to MeriStar Hospitality. In connection with the
termination of the intercompany agreement, we have agreed to modify the management agreements under
which we manage the MeriStar Hospitality hotels as follows:

+ MeriStar Hospitality may terminate management agreements each year representing up to 600 rooms with
the payment of a termination fee equal to 18 months of management fees and, if all 600 rooms are not
terminated in a given year, the remaining portion of the 600 rooms may be carried over to the subsequent
year.

» MeriStar Hospitality may terminate a management agreement if we make an investment, in the form of
debt or equity, in a hotel that is in the competitive set of a MeriStar Hospitality hotel (provided that the
termination can only occur between 12 and 18 months following the date the investment is made); and

« the period during which termination fees are paid (other than as described in the first bullet point above) is
extended from 30 months to 48 months; provided that the period during which MeriStar Hospitality may
reduce the termination fee by providing a new hotel for us to manage to replace the terminated hotel will
remain 30 months.

In addition, in connection with the termination of the intercompany agreement, MeriStar Hospitality and we

have resolved our disagreement over the calculation of termination fees. We have agreed to calculate the

termination fees based upon an average of the present value of remaining estimated management fees due to 31
us under the contract (a) discounted as individual monthly payments and (b) discounted based on a lump

sum payment at the end of the contract term. We have agreed to provide MeriStar Hospitality with a $2,500

credit against termination fees owed for hotels to be sold by MeriStar Hospitality in the future. As of

December 31, 2004 there is approximately $1,140 of this credit remaining.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation — Our consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of
all of our majority owned subsidiaries. As part of our consolidation process, we eliminate all significant
intercompany balances and transactions. We use the equity method to account for all of our investments in
unconsolidated joint ventures, as we do not have any controlling interests. We own 100% of the Pittsburgh
Airport Residence Inn by Marriott, which is consolidated in our financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — We consider all highly liguid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable when we
determine it is more likely than not a specific account will not be collected and provide a general reserve for
the population of our accounts that we believe may become uncollectible based on current business
conditions. Although it is reasonably possible that our estimate for doubtful accounts could change in the
future, we are not aware of any events that would result in a change to our estimate that would be material to
our financial position or results of operations for 2004.

Marketable Securities — We provide deferred compensation for certain executives and hotel general managers
by depositing amounts into trusts for the benefit of the participating employees. Deposits into the trusts are
expensed. Amounts in the trusts earn investment income, which serves to increase the corresponding
deferred compensation obligation. Investments, which are recorded at market value, are directed by us or the
participants, and consist principally of mutual funds. Unrealized gains and losses were not significant at
December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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Property and Equipment — We record our fixed assets at cost. We depreciate these assets using the straight-
line method over estimated useful lives ranging from three to 40 years.

Officers and Employees Notes Receivable — Subject to the limitations of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we
grant loans from time to time to officers and employees, which are payable under various terms and
conditions. We may forgive certain amounts in accordance with employment agreements, and such amounts
are expensed ratably over the terms of such employment agreements.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets — Our intangible assets consist of hotel management contract costs, costs
incurred to obtain management contracts, franchise fees, and deferred financing fees. Goodwill represents the
excess of the cost to acquire a business over the estimated fair value of the net identifiable assets of that
business. We amortize intangible assets on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets. These lives range from five to 25 years. We do not amortize goodwill.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — Whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
values of long-lived assets (including intangible assets) may be impaired, we perform an analysis to
determine the recoverability of the asset’s carrying value. We make estimates of the urdiscounted cash flows
from the expected future operations of the asset. If the analysis indicates that the carrying value is not
recoverable from future cash flows, the asset is written down to estimated fair value and an impairment loss is
recognized. Any impairment losses are recorded as operating expenses. We amortize our deferred financing
costs on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest method.

We review long-lived assets for impairment when one or more of the following events occur:

+ Current or immediate short-term (future 12 months) projected cash flows are significantly less than the
most recent historical cash flows.

+ A significant loss of management contracts without the realistic expectation of a replacement.

» The unplanned departure of an executive officer or other key personnel that could adversely affect our
ability to maintain our competitive position and manage future growth.

+ A significant adverse change in legal factors or an adverse action or assessment by a regulator, which could
affect the value of our long-lived assets.

« Events that could cause significant adverse changes and uncertainty in business and leisure travel patterns.

We make estimates of the undiscounted cash flows from the expected future operations of the asset. In
projecting the expected future cash flows, we base our estimates on projected amounts of future earnings
before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, and equity in earnings of affiliates, or
Adjusted EBITDA. We use growth assumptions to project these estimated future cash flows out over the
expected life of the underlying asset. Our impairment analysis considers various factors, such as the current
operating performance of the underlying assets, our future forecast for operations, funding requirements or
obligations we may have, and the estimated fair value of our investment based on liquidation preferences and
priorities within an affiliate ownership structure.

Impairment of Goodwill — In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
annually, or as circumstances warrant, we perform an analysis to determine whether the goodwill carrying
value has been impaired. To test goodwill for impairment, we perform an analysis to compare the fair value of
the reporting unit to which the goodwill is assigned to the carrying value of the reporting unit. We make
estimates of the discounted cash flows from the expected future operations of the reporting unit. If the
analysis indicates that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, we do an analysis to
compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The
implied fair value of the goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to all the
assets and liabilities of that unit as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination. The
excess of the fair value of reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied
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fair value of the goodwill. If the implied fair value of the goodwill is less than the carrying value, an
impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. Any impairment losses are recorded as
operating expenses. Aside from testing upon the occurrence of trigger events, we also test goodwill for
impairment annually during our fourth quarter. We did not recognize any impairment losses for goodwill in
2004, 2003 or 2002.

Income Taxes — We account for income taxes following Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Deferred income taxes reflect the tax consequences on future years
of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts. We have an
allowance against some, but not all, of our recorded deferred tax assets. We have considered estimated future
taxable income and prudent and feasible ongoing tax planning strategies in assessing the need for a valuation
allowance. Our estimates of taxable income require us to make assumptions about various factors that affect
our operating results, such as economic conditions, consumer demand, competition and other factors. OQur
actual results may differ from these estimates. Based on actual results or a revision in future estimates, we
might determine that we would not be able to realize additional portions of our net deferred tax assets in the
future; if that occurred, we would record a charge to the income tax provision in that period.

Foreign Currency Translation — We maintain the results of operations for our foreign locations in the local
currency and translate these results using the average exchange rates during the period. We translate the
assets and liabilities to U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. We reflect the
resulting translation adjustments in stockholders’ equity as a cumulative foreign currency translation
adjustment, a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax.

Stock-Based Compensation — In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, 33
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based

Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary

change to the expense recognition provisions of the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based

employee compensation. Effective January 1, 2003, we elected to adopt the fair-value method of accounting

for stock options, using the prospective method.

Through December 31, 2002, we had followed the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation.” Accordingly, when we initially issued options, we accounted for them under
the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” We accounted for our repriced options under variable plan accounting in accordance with FASB
Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Including Stock Compensation.”

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, and has been determined as if we had accounted for our employee stock
options using the fair value method. The weighted average fair value of the options granted was $5.49, $4.78
and $2.30 during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The fair value for these options was estimated at the date
of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

2004 2003 2002
Risk-free interestrate ............. ... .. ... 2.22% 5.70% 3.83%
Dividendrate .. ....... ... .. .. .. ... ... — — —
Volatility factor ......... ... .. ... i 0.35 0.34 0.74

Weighted average expected life ... ................ 3.23 years 3.02 years 3.16 years
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Had compensation cost for stock options been determined based on the fair value at the grant date for awards
under our plans, our net loss and per share amounts would have been the pro forma amounts indicated as
follows:

2004 2003 2002

Net loss available to common shareholders, as reported ....... $(5,663) $(4,451) $(38,777)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in

reported net loss, netof tax . ...... ... ... i 207 107 1,038
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards, net

Of 1K L {280) (335) (1,913)
Net loss available to common shareholders, pro forma ........ $(5,736) $(4,679) $(39,652)
Earnings per share:

Basic, asreported . ... ... e $ (0.19) §$ (0.21) $ (2.86)

Basic, proforma ................ $ (0.19) $(022) $ (2.92)

Diluted, asreported ......... ... .. . $ (0.19) $ (021) $ (2.86)

Diluted, pro forma ......... .. .. .. $ (0.19) $ (0.22) $ (2.92)

The effects of applying Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 for disclosing compensation
costs may not be representative of the effects on reported net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share for
future years.

Revenue Recognition — We earn revenue from our owned hotel, management contracts and related sources,
and corporate housing operations. We recognize revenue from our owned and leased hotels from rooms, food
and beverage, and other operating departments as earned at the close of each business day. Our management
and other fees consist of base and incentive management fees receivable from third-party owners of hotel
properties, and fees for other related services we provide. We recognize base fees and fees for other services as
revenue when earned in accordance with the individual management contracts. In accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,” we accrue incentive fees in
the period when we are certain they are earned. Most of our contracts have annual incentive fee
measurements, and we typically record any incentive fees on these contracts in the last month of the annual
contract period.

Comprehensive Loss — Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive
Income,” requires companies to display comprehensive income (loss) and its components in a financial
statement to be included in a company’s full set of annual financial statements or in the notes to financial
statements. Comprehensive income (loss) represents a measure of all changes in the equity of a company that
result from recognized transactions and other economic events for the period, other than transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners. Our comprehensive loss includes net income (loss) and other
comprehensive income (loss) from foreign currency items, derivative instruments, translation adjustments,
and unrealized gains (losses) from our investments which are available for sale.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance
sheet and measure those instruments at estimated fair value.

Our interest rate risk management objective is to limit the impact of interest rate changes on our earnings and
cash flows. We assess interest rate cash flow risk by continually identifying and monitoring changes in interest
rate exposures that may adversely impact expected future cash fiows, and by evaluating hedging opportuni-
ties. We do not enter into derivative instruments for any purpose other than interest rate hedging purposes.

Our interest rate swap has been designated as a hedge against changes in future cash flows associated with the
interest payments of our variable rate debt obligations. Accordingly, our interest rate swap was reflected at
fair value in our consolidated balance sheet and the related unrealized gains or losses on the swap agreement
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are recorded in stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). As of
December 31, 2003, the fair value of our derivative instruments was a liability of $307. Our interest rate swap
matured on October 1, 2004. :

In February 2003, we entered into a $19,000, three-year interest rate cap agreement with a financial institution
in order to hedge against the effect that future interest rate fluctuations may have on our floating rate debt.
The interest rate agreement caps the 30-day LIBOR at 6.65%. This cap is scheduled to mature on March 1,
2008.

Insurance Receivables and Reserves — We earn insurance revenues through reinsurance premiums, direct
premiums written and reinsurance premiums ceded. Reinsurance premiums are recognized when policies are
written and any unearned portions of the premium are recognized to account for the unexpired term of the
policy. Direct premiums written are recognized in accordance with the underlying policy and reinsurance
premiums ceded are recognized on a pro-rata basis over the life of the related policies. Losses, at present
value, are provided for reported claims, claims incurred but not reported and claims settlement expenses.
Claims incurred but not reported are estimated based on historical experience and other various factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual liabilities may differ from estimated amounts
and any changes in estimated losses and settlements are reflected in current earnings. All accounts are
classified with assets and liabilities of a similar nature in the consolidated balance sheets. Amounts restricted
due to statutory requirements consist of cash and cash equivalents of $3,000 and $1,421 at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. These amounts are included in restricted cash in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

Earnings per Share — We present basic and diluted earnings per share, or EPS, on the face of the income 35
statement. Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common sharehold-

ers by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the

potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or

converted into common stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity. Dilutive securities are excluded

from the computation in periods in which they have an anti-dilutive effect.

Use of Estimates — To prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, we must make many estimates and assumptions. These estimates
and assumptions affect the reported amounts on our balance sheets and income statements, and our
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Our actual results could
differ materially from those estimates. '

Other Revenue and Other Expenses From Managed Properties — We record these amounts in accordance
with EITF 01-14. These amounts represent expenses incurred in managing the hotel properties for which we
are contractually reimbursed by the hotel owner. These amounts generally include salary and employee
benefits for our employees working in the properties and certain other insurance costs. We revised and
reduced other revenue from managed properties and other expenses from managed properties in the amounts
$54,800, $57,306 and $3,577 for the years ended 2004, 2003, 2002, respectively. This revision has no impact
on operating income (loss), net income (loss) or earnings (loss) per share.

Reclassifications — We have reclassified certain 2003 and 2002 amounts to be consistent with the 2004
presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,”
an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,”
(“FIN 46”). FIN 46 explains how to identify a variable interest entity (“VIE”) and how an enterprise
assesses its interests in a VIE to decide whether to consolidate the entity. This interpretation requires existing
unconsolidated VIEs to be consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if the entities do not effectively
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disperse risks among parties involved. The original provisions of FIN 46 were effective February 1, 2003 for all
arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision of FIN 46
(“FIN 46R”) to clarify some of its provisions. The revision results in multiple effective dates based on the
nature as well as the creation date of the VIE. VIEs created after January 31, 2003, but prior to January 1,
2004, may be accounted for either based on the original interpretations or the revised interpretations.
However, VIEs created after January 1, 2004 must be accounted for under the revised interpretations.
FIN 46R is effective beginning in the first quarter of 2004. We do not have interests in any VIEs created
subsequent to January 31, 2003.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, (“FAS 123R”), which
requires that the cost resulting from all share-based payment transactions be recognized in the financial
statements. The statement requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in
exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award (with limited
exceptions). The cost will be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide
service in exchange for the award (usually the vesting period). No compensation cost is recognized for equity
instruments for which employees do not render the requisite service. Employee share purchase plans will not
result in recognition of compensation cost if certain conditions are met; those conditions are much the same
as the related conditions in FAS 123. The provisions of FAS 123R are effective July 1, 2005. The adoption of
this standard in 2005 is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial position and .
results of operations as we currently use the fair value method prescribed in SFAS No. 123.

3. INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO AFFILIATES

Our investments in and advances to joint ventures and affiliated companies consist of the following at
December 31:

2004 2003
MIP Lessee, L. P. ... $ 4856 $ 5,681
S.D. Bridgeworks, LLC . ... ... 253 3,389
CNL/IHC Partners, L.P. .. ... .. . . 2,477 2,382
Interconn Ponte Vedra Company, L.P. ....... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... 2,334 1,210
Other L L 2,235 3,163
Total .o e $12,155 $15,825

During 2004 and 2003, we contributed $1,124 and $1,210, respectively, to our existing partnership, Interconn
Ponte Vedra, L.P., that owns the Marriott at Sawgrass in Ponte Vedra, Fla. These contributions were for
capital expansion projects at the property and represent a preferred equity investment on which we receive a
12% preferred return.

We have an investment in MeriStar Lessee, L.P. (MIP), which represents 10% of the common equity. MIP
owns eight properties that we manage. In December 2004, we invested an additional $1 million as & preferred
investment. This was repaid to us in February 2005.

In the first quarter of 2004, it was determined that our investment in MIP was impaired based on purchase
offers we received on two hotels owned by the joint venture that were held for sale. Accordingly, we recorded
an impairment charge of $563 to reduce the carrying amount of the investment to its estimated fair value.
This amount is included in asset impairments and other write-offs in our statements of operations.

During the first quarter of 2004, we wrote off our remaining investment in our joint venture that owns the
Residence Inn Houston Astrodome Medical Center. The hotel was underperforming and in the first quarter of
2004 the joint venture was notified that it had defaulted on its bank loan; therefore, we wrote off the
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remaining carrying value of $538. This amount is included in asset impairments and other write-offs in our
statements of operations. One of our directors holds a 22.46% ownership interest in this hotel.

In June 2004, S.D. Bridgeworks, L.L.C., our joint venture that owns the Hilton Garden San Diego Gaslamp,
paid us $2,687 of its note payable owed to us, plus $300 of accumulated interest. We owned 17.24% of this
joint venture at December 31, 2004. On January 6, 2003, San Diego Bridgeworks, LLC, sold Hilton San
Diego Gaslamp. Our total proceeds are expected to be approximately $4.4 million. As of March 1, 2003, we
have received $2.9 million. ’

In 2001, we formed two limited partnerships (FCH/IHC Hotels, L.P. and FCH/IHC Leasing, L.P.) with
FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated (“FelCor”). These partnerships own eight mid-scale hotels, and we
manage those eight hotels. The partnership entities are owned 50.5% by FelCor and 49.5% by us. FelCor
consolidates these entities in its consolidated financial statements. Annually we test the carrying value of our
investments for impairment. The operating results of the hotels in the FelCor partnerships are lower than
what we had originally forecasted when we formed the partnership with FelCor. Our review as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002 indicated that the future projected cash flows from the partnerships’ hotels were
not sufficient to allow us to recover our investment in these partnerships, and we believe the decline to be
other than temporary. Accordingly, in 2002, we recorded an impairment charge of $2,704 and in 2003, we
recorded an impairment charge of $4,476, reducing the combined net book value of the investment and a note
receivable to zero. These charges are included in asset impairments and write-offs in the accompanying
statements of operations.

Our review of our other investments and advances to affiliates did not indicate that any other investments or

advances were impaired. The recoverability of the carrying values of our investments and advances is, 37
however, dependent upon operating results of the underlying real estate investments. Future adverse changes

in the hospitality and lodging industry, market conditions or poor operating results of the underlying

investments could result in future losses or the inability to recover the carrying value of these long-lived assets.

We are not responsible for, and do not guarantee, the debt or other obligations of any of these investees.

The combined summarized financial information of our unconsolidated joint ventures is as follows:

December 31,

2004 2003

Balance sheet data:

CUITEIIt ASSEES .« o vttt et e e e e e $ 52,221  $ 82,006
N OM-CUITEINE @SSELS & o v v vttt e e et e et e e e e e e e e e e 777,751 826,786
Current lHabilities . ... ... 61,838 90,896
Non-current Habilities . .. ...t 542,852 558,078
Operating data:

Revenue ... e 234,587 221,599
OPpErating EXPeNSES . ... v vttt ettt et e e 168,902 159,488
Net income (10SS) - . oottt e (9,601)  (24,420)
Our share of 10sses. . . ... . i e (1,056) (1,618)

Under the provisions of management agreements with certain hotel owners, we have outstanding commit-
ments to provide an aggregate of $2,719 to these hotel owners in the form of investments or working capital
loans. The timing of future investments or working capital loans to hotel owners is currently unknown as it is
at the hotel owner’s discretion.
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4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consist of the following:

2004 2003

Land ... o e $ 1,344 § 1,344
Furniture and fiXtures . .......... ... . . i 6,240 12,200
Building and improvements ........... ... i 7,052 9,937
Leasehold improvements. .. ........ooi i 4,608 4,453
Computer EqUIPMENT . . .\ttt 0,424 5,512
SO WAL . . e 11,710 11,011
OtheT . e 323 891
Total L $ 37,701 $ 45,348

Less accumulated depreciation........... ... .. i (17,720)  (18,292)
Property and equipment, Net. . ...ttt $ 19981 § 27,056

The “Other” line item above represents vehicles and operating stock primarily relating to our BridgeStreet
corporate housing division.

In the fourth quarter of 2004, we recorded an impairment charge of $2.9 million to reduce the carrying value
of the Residence Inn Pittsburgh, our only wholly owned property, to its estimated fair value. See Note 12 for
further details.

5. GOODWILL

Goodwill was $96,802 and $92,123 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. As part of
the purchase accounting for the MeriStar-Old Interstate merger in 2002, we recorded $91,960 of goodwill.
During 2003 we had several purchase price adjustments to that amount, for a net adjustment of $32. Also
included in the 2003 balance is approximately $131 representing purchases made by our BridgeStreet
corporate housing division.

On October 26, 2004, we purchased Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc (SHP). The purchase price was $8,000, of
which $4,679 was allocated to goodwill, $4,658 was allocated to management contracts, and we recognized a
deferred tax liability of $1,337.

The carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment is as follows:

2004 2003
Hotel management. ... ...ttt $87,596  $82,917
Corporate NOUSING . ..ot v vttt et et e e e 9,206 9,206

Total oo $96,802  $92,123
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6.- INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consist of the following:

2004 2003
Management CONIACES . ...\ttt i et e et $33,186  $56,913
Franchise fees. . ..o 1,945 1,945
Deferred financing fees ....... .. 2,676 2,378
O heT . 2,018 946
Total COSE ..ot 59,825 62,182
Less accumulated amortization . ........ ... .. i (8,663)  (6,844)
Intangible assets, net . .......... .. ... . . i [ $51,162  $55,338

We amortize the value of our intangible assets over their estimated useful lives, which generally correspond
with the terms of the associated management, franchise, or financing agreement.

We incurred aggregate amortization expense of $3,983, $7,911, and $11,004 on these assets for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Amortization of deferred financing fees is included in
interest expense.

On July 1, 2002, MeriStar assigned the leases of 47 hotels to a subsidiary of Winston Hotels, Inc. under a

provision of the REIT Modernization Act that allows REITs to lease their owned hotels to a taxable 39
subsidiary which can, in turn, engage third parties to manage the properties. As part of this agreement, we had

continued to operate 33 of Winston’s properties. During April 2003, Winston notified us of their intention to

terminate the management contracts. No management contract termination fees were received from Winston.

In connection with the termination of the Winston contracts, we wrote off $587 of unamortized management

contract costs during 2003, which is included in asset impairments and write-offs in our statement of

operations.

During 2004, MeriStar Hospitality sold 21 hotels that we managed. In total, we wrote off §7,151 of
unamortized management contract costs associated with these disposed hotels, which is included in asset
impairments and other write-offs in our statements of operations for 2004.

In addition, during 2004:

» we wrote off an additional $109 of unamortized management contract costs related to other contracts
terminated during the year, and $63 in costs associated with management contracts that were not
completed;

« we recorded $6,490 of additional management contract costs on new contracts that were completed in 2004.

Our estimated amortization expense for the next five years is expected to be as follows:

Year ending December 31, 2005 . . ... $2,924
Year ending December 31, 2006. ... ... 2,717
Year ending December 31, 2007 . ... ..o e 2,651
Year ending December 31, 2008 . ... ... .. e 2,623
Year ending December 31, 2009 . .. ... ... 2,435
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Our long-term debt consists of the following:

2004 2003
Senior revolving credit facility(a) ............ ... . ... ..., e $27,000  $24,500
Senior credit facility term loan(a) . ........ .. 16,474 18,098
NORN-TeCOUTSE PIOMISSOTY NOLE .. ottt et ie ettt ee et ie e e e 3,723 3,723
Sunstone Promissory NOLE ... oo\ttt ettt et e 2,000 —
Subordinated term loan(a) . ... ... . 40,000 40,000

89,197 86,321
Less current portion . .. ...t e (5,750)  (1,625)
Total long-term debt ... .. ... $83,447  $84,696

{a) We refinanced our credit facility and repaid our subordinated term loan on January 14, 2005, as discussed
below. We are presenting the current portion of our debt on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2004,
and the table above based on the terms of the new credit facility.

Senior Credit Agreement — Effective July 31, 2002, in connection with the closing of the merger between
MeriStar and Old Interstate, we entered into a $113,000 senior credit agreement with a group of banks. The
senior credit agreement consists of a $65,000 term loan due on July 28, 2005, and a $48,000 revolving credit
facility due on July 28, 2005, with a one-year extension at our option. The interest rate on the senior credit
agreement is the 30-day London Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, plus 300 to 450 basis points, depending
upon the results of certain financial tests. The senior credit facility contains covenants, including maintenance
of financial ratios at the end of each quarter, compliance reporting requirements and other customary
restrictions. At December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with these covenants. At December 31, 2004,
borrowings under the senior credit agreement bore interest at a rate of 5.94% per annum, which is the 30-day
LIBOR plus 350 basis points. During the fourth quarter of 2003, using the proceeds from our public equity
offering, we repaid $435,276 of the term loan.

We incurred $2,434 and $4,308 of interest expense on the senior credit agreement for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The senior credit facility contains certain covenants, including maintenance of financial ratios at the end of
each quarter, compliance reporting requirements and other customary restrictions. At December 31, 2004,
we were in compliance with these covenants. The senior credit agreement also includes pledges of collateral,
including the following:

+ Ownership interests of all existing subsidiaries and unconsolidated entities as well as any future material
subsidiary or unconsolidated entity;

« Owned hospitality properties; and

» Other collateral that is not previously prohibited from being pledged by any of our existing
contracts/agreements.

On January 14, 2005 we entered into an amended and restated senior secured credit facility with various
lenders. The amended and restated senior secured credit facility provides aggregate loan commitments of a
$53 million term loan and a $55 million revolving credit facility. In addition, we have the ability to increase
the revolving credit facility and/or the term loan by up to $50 million, in the aggregate, by seeking additional
commitments from lenders. The scheduled maturity is January 14, 2008.



INTERSTATE HOTELS & RESORTS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We will pay interest on our borrowings at an interest rate under the revolving credit facility ranging from
LIBOR plus 325 to 350 basis points and at an interest rate under the term loan ranging from LIBOR plus 450

" to 550 basis points. The actual rate for both the revolving credit facility and the term loan depends on the
result of certain financial tests. As of March 1, 2005, based on those financial tests, borrowings under the
revolving credit facility bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 350 basis points, and borrowings under the term
loan bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 550 basis points.

As with the prior facility, the debt under the amended credit facility is guaranteed by certain of our existing
subsidiaries and secured by pledges of ownership interests, owned hospitality properties, and other collateral
that was not previously prohibited from being pledged by any of our existing contracts and or agreements. As
with our previous senior credit facility, our amended and restated credit facility contains covenants that
include maintenance of financial ratios at the end of each quarter, compliance reporting requirements and
other customary restrictions. We borrowed $87.2 million immediately to repay our existing $40 million
subordinated term loan, the $43.5 million outstanding under our pricr senior secured credit facility and fees
and expense related to the repayments and the new credit facility. In addition, we entered into an amendment
to our new credit facility on February 4, 2005 in connection with the purchase of the Hilton Concord. See
Note 23, Subsequent Events, for further details on this purchase and the amendment. As of March 1, 2005
the total availability under our credit facility was $22.5 million.

MeriStar Hospitality Term Loan — MeriStar Hospitality, seeking additional liquidity, approached us in late

2002 regarding a negotiated discounted repayment of the MeriStar Hospitality term loan. The repayment of

$42,052 was completed in January 2003. We financed the repayment with proceeds from a $40,000

subordinated term loan described below and cash on hand and realized a gain of $13,629. That gain is 41
included in our statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003. We incurred $1,957 and $123

of interest expense on the MeriStar Hospitality loan for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003,

respectively.

Subordinated Term Loan — In January 2003, we entered into a $40,000 subordinated term loan that carries a
variable interest rate based on the 30-day LIBOR plus a spread of 8.50%. The subordinated term loan
matured on January 31, 2006, but if the revolving portion of our senior credit facility is extended for an
additional year, which it may be at our option, the maturity of the subordinated term loan could have been
automatically extended by one year to January 31, 2007. This term loan was subordinated to borrowings
under our senior credit agreement and contained certain covenants, including maintenance of financial ratios
at the end of each quarter, compliance reporting requirements and other customary restrictions. At
December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with these covenants. At December 31, 2004, borrowings under
the subordinated term loan bore interest at a rate of 10.81% per annum. We incurred $4,050 and $3,855 of
interest expense on the subordinated term loan for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. In January 2004, we repaid this loan with proceeds from the 2005 refinancing of our credit
facility, as discussed above. We expect to write off approximately $2,000 of deferred financing costs.

Non-Recourse Promissory Note — In 2001, we entered into a non-recourse promissory note in the amount of
$4,170 with FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated (“FelCor”), our joint venture to fund the acquisition of a
50% non-controlling equity interest in two partnerships that own eight mid-scale hotels. Interest on the note is
payable monthly at the rate of 12% per annum, and the outstanding principal balance is due and payable on
December 31, 2010. For 2004 and 2003, we incurred $447 and $482, respectively, of interest expense on the
promissory note. Accrued irterest payable was $414, as of December 31, 2004.

As of December 31, 2004, the remaining balance on the promissory note is $3,723. After notifying FelCor in
2004, we suspended further principal and interest payments on this non-recourse promissory note and
accordingly, we are in default under the note. We expect that we will ultimately transfer ownership of our
equity interests in this joint venture to FelCor in return for the extinguishment of the debt. This note would
have no value to a third party.
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Sunstone Promissory Note — On October 26, 2004, we entered in to a Stock Purchase Agreement to acquire
Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc., a Colorado corporation (“SHP”), a hotel management company. In
connection with the purchase, we entered into a note with Sunstone Hotels Investors, LLC, for $2,000 that is
due December 31, 2005.

In connection with the acquisition, SHP entered into new management contracts with respect to 54 hotels
previously managed by SHP, 50 of which are owned by Sunstone Hotel Investors, Inc. and its affiliates.

Fair Value — Most of our outstanding long-term debt is based on LIBOR rates. We have determined that the
fair value of our outstanding borrowings on our senior credit facility and subordinated term loan approximate
their carrying value at December 31, 2004. The fair value of the swap agreement was a net liability of $307 at
December 31, 2003. This swap matured on October 1, 2004. We believe that our non-recourse promissory
note would have no value to a third party. We intend to exchange the non-recourse promissory note for our
equity interests in the related FelCor partnerships, as discussed above. The carrying value of this investment
is zero.

In February 2005, we entered into a $19,000, three-year interest rate cap agreement in connection with the
mortgage debt we recorded with the purchase of the Hilton Concord, in order to hedge against the effect that
future interest rate fluctuations may have on our floating rate debt. The interest rate agreement caps the 30-
day LIBOR at 6.65%. This cap is scheduled to mature on March 1, 2008.

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

We calculate our basic earnings per common share by dividing net loss available to common shareholders by
the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding. Qur diluted earnings per common
share assumes the issuance of common stock for all potentially dilutive stock equivalents outstanding. In
periods in which there is a loss, diluted shares outstanding will equal basic shares outstanding to prevent anti-
dilution. Basic and diluted earnings per common share are as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Loss from continuing operations ..., $(3,919) $(2,035) $(36,316)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ................. (1,744)  (2,416) 145
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock:

Dividends . . ... ... e — — 307

ACCIEHION o\t i i i i e e — — 356

Conversion incentive payments ... ............uovuneun... — — 1,943
Net loss available to common shareholders .................. $(5,663) $(4,451) $(38,777)
Weighted average number of basic and diluted shares

outstanding (in thousands) ............... ... ... ....... 30,473 21,474 13,563
Basic loss per share from continuing operations .............. $ (0.13) $ (0.10) $ (2.87)
Basic earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations ... $ (0.06) $ (0.11) $ 0.01
Basic loss pershare. ....... .. oot e $ (0.19) $ (0.21) § (2.86)
Weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding (in

thousands) . ... o 30,473 21,474 13,563
Diluted loss per share from continuing operations ............ $ (0.13) % (0.10) $ (2.87)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations  $ (0.06) $ (0.11) $ 0.01
Diluted loss pershare ....... ..., $ (0.19) $ (0.21) $ (2.86)
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The number of potentially dilutive securities not included above (in thousands), were 560, 576, and 440 at
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. These securities include options, operating partnership
units and unvested restricted stock.

On July 31, 2002, in the merger transaction, the Old Interstate shareholders received 4.6 shares of common
stock for each share of Old Interstate stock outstanding. MeriStar stockholders and unit-holders continued to
hold their existing stock and units. On August 1, 2002, we effected a one-for-five reverse stock split of all
outstanding shares of common stock. The weighted average number of common shares outstanding used in
the table above is presented assuming that the conversion of the Old Interstate stock and the reverse stock
split occurred on January 1, 2002.

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

We are organized into two operating divisions: hotel management and corporate housing. Both of these
divisions are reportable operating segments. Each division is managed separately because of its distinctive
products and services.

Hotel Corporate Financial

Management Housing Other Statements
Year ended December 31, 2004 _
ReVenue .. ..ot $833,423 $110,620 $§ —  $944,043
Total @SSELS v vt $238,410 $ 18,465 $19,739  $276,614
Year ended December 31, 2003 43
Revenue ........... i, $859,393  $102,773 $§ —  $962,166
Total assets ...........couniiiniinnnn.. $238,095 $ 19,087 $20,741  $277,923
Year ended December 31, 2002
Revenue ..o $550,775 $ 43068 $§ —  $593.843
Total @ssets . ..ot $238,210 $ 20,886  $21,585  $280,681

Revenues from foreign operations were as follows:
2004 2003 2002

Canada . ... e $ 1,062 $ 1,518 $ 1,332
United Kingdom . ........... ... ... . . . i $24,523  $23,509 $10;719
France ......... i $ 1,840 $ 1,628 § 354
RUSSIA . . . $ 6,605 $ 4320 § 4,104

Included in discontinued operations is revenue from the Toronto operations of our corporate housing division,
which was disposed of in June 2004, amounting to $2,233, $6,696 and $3,750 for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 respectively.

10. MERGER

The merger between MeriStar and Old Interstate was completed on July 31, 2002. We accounted for the
merger as a purchase of MeriStar by Old Interstate. Accordingly, we have included the operating results of
MeriStar in our condensed consolidated financial statements since July 31, 2002, the effective date of the
merger.

Of the $59,712 of intangible assets acquired, $58,199 related to management contracts, amortized over an
18 year weighted-average useful life. The $91,992 of goodwill was assigned to the hotel management and
corporate housing segments in the amounts of $82,265 and $9,727, respectively, none of which is expected fo
be deductible for tax purposes.
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Merger Costs

Merger costs included in our statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 consist
of the following:

2003 2002
Write-off of deferred financing fees .............. ... .. i § —  $2,465
Write-off of officer and employee notes receivable ........................ — 1,866
Accelerated vesting of preferred stock....... ... .. o — 1,000
Write-off of fixed asSets . ...t — 1,860
INtegration COSES . v .\ vttt et e e e e e 3,816 2,172
Total $3,816 - $9,363

Integration costs include professional fees, travel, relocation, and other transition costs. There were no similar
expenses in 2004.
11. RESTRUCTURING EXPENSES

We have recorded $4,048, $3,400, and $12,614 in restructuring expenses for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, there was $2,732 and $5,388 remaining
in the restructuring accrual, respectively.

These charges consist of the following:

2004 2003 2002
Former corporate personnel severance .......................... $ 570 $3,400 $10,470
Former CEQO’S SEVErance ... ....vvitr it en 3,312 — —
Corporate housing restructuring .. ...........c.ooeeiiininneen.n 166 — —
Non-cancelable leases. . .......... ... i, — — 2,144
Total . .o e $4,048  $3,400 $12,614

Severance Costs for Former Personnel — We have incurred charges of approximately $570, $3,400, and
$10,470 for 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively related to severance payments to former personnel, exclusive of
our former CEO, Paul Whetsell, as discussed below.

Severance Agreement — Effective March 31, 2004, we and our chairman, Paul W. Whetsell entered into an
agreement to conclude his employment as our chief executive officer as Steve Jorns had assumed that role.
Mr. Whetsell was granted 250,000 shares of common stock, $0.01 par value, with a market value of $5.82 per
share (the April 2, 2004 closing price) and paid $130 in cash. Pursuant to the agreement, these restricted
shares along with 157,000 previously granted unvested shares, which vested in connection with the
agreement, may not be sold or otherwise transferred during a restricted period unless Mr. Whetsell gives us
the right of first refusal to purchase the restricted shares proposed to be sold or transferred at the price of $0.01
per share. The restricted period ends on specified dates through 2006 with respect to specified numbers of
restricted shares as set forth in the agreement. However, under certain circumstances, the restricted period
may be extended to January 1, 2010. Because the shares were granted in lieu of a contractually required cash
severance payment, Mr. Whetsell is not required to perform any additional services to earn the stock.
Consequently, we recorded the entire severance amount in the period the stock was granted. In addition, in
exchange for Mr. Whetsell’s agreement to accept the payment in stock rather than cash, we agreed to
reimburse him for taxes he incurs with respect to the stock as the trading restrictions on the stock lapse. The
total cost of this severance payment, based on the value of the stock on March 31, 2004 and our liability for
Mr. Whetsell’s taxes based on the value of the stock as of that date, was approximately $3,312, and is
included in restructuring expenses in our statement of operations. This cost may be adjusted in the future to
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reflect the amount of our actual liability for taxes based on the value of the stock on the dates the restrictions
lapse.

Corporate Housing — During 2004, we incurred charges of approximately $166 related to severance for
former personnel and other related charges in connection with restructuring within our corporate housing

operation.

Non-Cancelable Leases — During 2002, we incurred charges of approximately $2,144 related to non-
cancelable leases in certain offices that we closed as a result of the merger.

12. ASSET IMPAIRMENTS AND OTHER WRITE-OFFS

These charges consist of the following:

2004 2003 2002
Management contract write-offs .............. ... ... ... ... .. $ 7,260 $4,072 $1,083
Investment impairments .. ... ... vttt 3,986 4,476 2,704
Cost of unicompleted merger ...... ... 459 — —
Leasehold improvement write-offs ........... ... ... ... ..... — 312 —
ORI . 102 — —
Total....... D PP $11,807 $8860  $3,787
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Management Contract Write-Offs — During 2004, we wrote off $7,151 related to the 21 properties sold by
MeriStar Hospitality and $109 related to other terminated contracts. In 2003, write-offs of management
contracts were $3,266 related to the properties sold by MeriStar Hospitality, $587 related to the termination of
contracts by Winston, and $219 related to other terminated contracts.

Investment Impairments — During the first quarter of 2004, it was determined that our investment in MIP
Lessee, L.P. was impaired based on purchase offers we received on two of the joint venture’s hotels.
Accordingly, we recorded an impairment charge of $563 to reduce the carrying amount of our investment to
its estimated fair value. In addition, during the first quarter of 2004, we wrote off our remaining investment in
our joint venture that owns the Residence Inn Houston Astrodome Medical Center. The hotel was
underperforming, and in the first quarter the joint venture was notified that it had defaulted on its bank loan;
therefore, we wrote off the remaining carrying value of $538. During third quarter 2004, in connection with
the hotel’s refinancing, we contributed an additional $275 to this joint venture. One of our directors holds a
22.46% ownership interest in this hotel. In the fourth quarter of 2004, and in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
we recorded a charge of $2.9 million to reduce the carrying value of the Residence Inn Pittsburgh to its
estimated fair value as we received an unsolicited offer by an unaffiliated purchaser, which triggered our
analysis of the carrying value. Our review of our investment in FCH/IHC Hotels, L.P. and FCH/IHC
Leasing, L.P. as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 indicated that the future projected cash flows from the
partnerships’ hotels were not sufficient to allow us to recover our investment in these partnerships, and we
believe the decline to be other than temporary. Accordingly, in 2002, we recorded an impairment charge of
$2,704 and in 2003, we recorded an impairment charge of $4,476, reducing the combined net book value of
the investment and a note receivable to zero. These charges are included in asset impairments and write-offs
in the accompanying statements of operations.

Cost of Uncompleted Merger — During the second quarter of 2004, we pursued a merger with a company that
owns a portfolio of hotels. We incurred approximately $459 of legal fees and due diligence costs related to this
potential merger. These costs were expensed in June 2004 when we determined that the merger would not be
consummated. There were no similar costs in 2003.
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Leasehold Improvement Write-Offs — In 2003, we incurred a charge of $312 relating to the write-off of
leasehold improvements for our former corporate office in Washington, D.C., as we relocated in July 2003 to
Arlington, Va.

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In June 2004, we completed the disposal of BridgeStreet Canada, Inc., the owner of our corporate housing
operation in Toronto. The Toronto operation had incurred operating losses, primarily due to long-term lease
commitments that did not allow us to adjust our inventory as demand changed. In exchange for the Toronto
operation, the buyer assumed our obligations, including the long-term lease commitments. Toronto opera-
tions are presented as discontinued operations in our statements of operations. We recorded approximately
$698 in asset write-offs and costs associated with this disposal, comprised of the following:

Fixed assets write-offs .. . ... i $376
SEVETANCE EXPEIMSE . . . .\ttt v ettt et ettt ettt e e e 100
ClOSINg COBES . . ot ettt et 171
10 1311 PP - 51
Total e e $698

Discontinued operations include the following:

2004 2003 2002
REVEINUC .« .« oottt e $ 2233 $ 6,69 $3,750
CloSING COSES .« .ttt it e e e e e (698) — —
Operating income (10SS) .. ..ottt e (1,046)  (2,416) 145

14. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At December 31, 2002, we had $56,069 of long-term debt under a term loan due to MeriStar Hospitality,
which was due to mature on July 31, 2007. MeriStar Hospitality, seeking additional liquidity, approached us in
late 2002 regarding a negotiated discounted repayment of the MeriStar Hospitality term loan. The repayment
of $42,052 was completed in January 2003. We financed the repayment with the proceeds from a $40,000
subordinated term loan and cash on hand and realized a gain of $13,629. The $40,000 subordinated unsecured
term loan is with Lehman Commercial Paper, Inc., an affiliate of Lehman Brothers Inc. Messrs. Mikulich
and Flannery, two of our directors, are employed by Lehman Brothers Inc, and CGLH Partners [ LP and
CGLH Partners II LP are also affiliates of Lehman Brothers Inc.

Effective July 1, 2004, MeriStar Hospitality and we agreed to terminate the intercompany agreement. We
believe the termination of the intercompany agreement is an important step in our efforts to pursue our
strategy of increasing our investment in hotels and resorts since we can now pursue real estate investment
opportunities without first having to offer the opportunity to MeriStar Hospitality. In connection with the
termination of the intercompany agreement, we have agreed to modify the management agreements under
which we manage the MeriStar Hospitality hotels as foilows:

» MeriStar Hospitality may terminate management agreements each year representing up to 600 rooms with
the payment of a termination fee equal to 18 months of management fees and, if all 600 rooms are not
terminated in a given year, the remaining portion of the 600 rooms may be carried over to the subsequent
year.

« MeriStar Hospitality may terminate a management agreement if we make an investment, in the form of
debt or equity, in a hotel that is in the competitive set of the MeriStar Hospitality hotel (provided that the
termination can only occur between 12 and 18 months following the date the investment is made); and
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» The period during which termination fees are paid (other than as described in the first bullet point above) is
extended from 30 months to 48 months; provided that the period during which MeriStar Hospitality may
reduce the termination fee by providing a new hotel for us to manage to replace the terminated hotel will
remain 30 months.

In addition, in connection with the termination of the intercompany agreement, MeriStar Hospitality and we
have resolved our disagreement over the calculation of termination fees. We have agreed to calculate the
termination fees based upon an average of the present value of remaining management fees due to us under
the contract (a) discounted as individual monthly payments and (b) discounted based on a lump sum
payment at the end of the contract term. We have agreed to provide MeriStar Hospitality with a $2,500 credit
against termination fees owed for hotels to be sold by MeriStar Hospitality in the future. As of December
2004, there is approximately $1,140 of this credit remaining. :

We incur day-to-day operating costs that are shared with and reimbursed by MeriStar Hospitality. The
balance due from MeriStar Hospitality as of December 31, 2004 is $9,630, and includes management fees for
each hotel, and reimbursements for insurance, employee benefits, sales and marketing expenses, and other
miscellaneous operating expenses. These amounts are normally paid within 30 days.

Corporate-Level Transactions with Directors — Mr. Paul W. Whetsell, our chairman, is an executive officer,
director and stockholder of MeriStar Hospitality. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, we
recorded $23,797 and $23,142, respectively, in management fees from MeriStar Hospitality.

We had 78,431 preferred units outstanding in our subsidiary operating partnership, which were held by an
affiliate of Mahmood J. Khimji, one of our directors. On May 3, 2004, we redeemed all 78,431 preferred units 47
for cash consideration, totaling to $1.3 million at a redemption price of $16.70 per unit.

Interstate Operating Company, L.P. (formerly known as MeriStar H&R Operating Company, L.P.), our
subsidiary operating partnership, of which we are the general partner, indirectly holds a substantial portion of
all of our assets. On July 31, 2002, MeriStar H&R Operating Company, L.P. entered into a Senior Secured
Credit Agreement, for a maximum amount of $113,000, with Lehman Brothers and various other lenders
and other parties. Lehman Brothers, Inc. was the joint lead arranger, book runner, and co-syndication agent.
As of December 31, 2004, approximately $83,474 was outstanding under the facility, which bears interest at a
variable rate per annum of LIBOR plus 3.00% to 4.50%, depending on meeting specified financial tests.

We hold a non-controlling 0.5% general partnership interest and a non-controlling 9.5% limited partnership
interest in MIP Lessee, L.P., a joint venture between entities related to Oak Hill Capital Partners, L.P. and
us. In December 2004, we invested an additional $1 million as a preferred investment. We currently have an
$11 million investment in MIP, which represents 10% of the common equity. MIP Lessee owns eight full-
service hotels. The joint venture has borrowed an aggregate of $143,700 of non-recourse loans from Lehman
Brothers Holding Inc., an entity related to Lehman Brothers Inc. MeriStar Hospitality has a $40,000
investment in the joint venture. We received net management fees of approximately $3,034 and $2,710 for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 from the hotels in this joint venture. Management fees from these
hotels are included in our statement of operations after the merger of MeriStar and Old Interstate on July 31,
2002.

In connection with the merger of MeriStar with Old Interstate, on June 26, 2002, some of the Series B
preferred stock and 8.75% convertible notes of Old Interstate held by CGLH Partners I LP and CGLH
Partners I1 LP, Mr. Hewitt and other former executives of Old Interstate were converted into Class A
common stock of Old Interstate. The CGLH partnerships are affiliated with Lehman Brothers Inc. As
inducement for the conversion of Series B preferred stock and the 8.75% convertible notes, Old Interstate paid
these parties $9,250. On August 2, 2002, these parties converted their remaining Old Interstate Series B
preferred stock and 8.75% convertible notes. As a result of these conversions, these parties held
6,805,824 shares of our common stock. Messrs. Alibhai, Khimji and Weiser are affiliated with the CGLH
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partnerships as are Messrs. Mikulich and Flannery, who are affiliated through their employment with Lehman
Brothers Inc.

On August 17, 2004 the partners of each of CGLH Partners 1 LP and CGLH Partners 11 LP entered into a
Distribution and Contribution Agreement, pursuant to which all the shares of common stock of the Company
held by the relevant partnership were distributed to six new limited partnerships formed by the partners of
the relevant partnership and to LP Interstate GP LLC and LB Interstate LP LLC, which are a general
partner and a limited partner, respectively, of each of the relevant partnerships (collectively, “LB Interstate”).
All such distributees were selling stockholders under the shelf registration statement filed in August 2004.

In connection with the Distribution and Contribution Agreement, the distributees of the shares formerly held
by the CGLH partnerships entered into a Stockholders’ Agreement. The Stockholders” Agreement limits the
ability of those investors to transfer their shares of our common stock without the consent of LB Interstate
for a period of one year. The limitations on transfer do not apply to certain permitted transfers and-pledges
of shares of our common stock in connection with obtaining margin loans. The Stockholders’ Agreement also
provides the other stockholder parties the opportunity to sell common stock, under certain circumstances, in
the event of sales of common stock by LB Interstate.

In connection with the Distribution and Contribution Agreement, we also entered into an Amended and
Restated Registration Rights Agreement, amending and restating the registration rights agreement originally

- entered into with the CGLH partnerships.

In connection with the merger, Mr. Hewitt executed a severance agreement pursuant to which he receives
monthly payments of $75, from August 2002 through January 2006. The agreement also provides that

Mr. Hewitt will receive employee benefits similar to the employee benefits he had as of the merger (excluding
retirement, stock option, stock purchase, deferred compensation, or other compensation benefits) through
Januvary 30, 2006. Mr. Hewitt also receives under the agreement a monthly car allowance of $0.7 per month,
plus reimbursement of certain other out-of-pocket expenses. At the merger date, we agreed, effective June
2002, to forgive a $400 loan and to partially forgive a $259 loan made by Old Interstate to Mr. Hewitt.

Property-Level Transactions with Directors — In October 2000, we entered into a management agreement
with an affiliate of the CGLH Partnerships to manage the Hilton Hotel Beaumont (Texas). The net
management fees earned from this hotel amounted to $119, $147, and $164 for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. Accounts receivable owed from this hotel was not significant at
December 31, 2003 and 2004. Effective September 14, 2004, we no longer manage this hotel.

During 2001, we entered into management agreements to manage the Park Central Hotel in New York, N.Y.
and the Sheraton Capital Center Hotel in Raleigh, N.C. The owners of these hotels engaged us to manage
these properties pursuant to the rights of the principal lender of these hotels to select a third-party
management company. The principal lender of these hotels is affiliated with the CGLH Partnerships. The net
management fees earned from these hotels amounted to $810, $811, and $1,125 for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. Effective March 1, 2003, we no longer manage the
Sheraton Capital Center Hotel in Raleigh, N.C. Effective December 9, 2004, we no longer manage the Park
Central Hotel in New York, N.Y.

We hold a 25% non-controlling equity interest in and manage the Houston Astrodome/Medical Center
Residence Inn by Marriott in Houston, Texas. Mr. Alibhai holds a 22.46% ownership interest in the hotel. The
net management fees earned from this hotel amounted to $183, $177, and $218 for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

We hold a 49.5% non-controlling equity interest in two limited partnerships that own seven Marriott-branded
hotels and one Hampton Inn hotel for which we made a total investment of approximately $8,700. FelCor
Lodging Trust owns the remaining 50% of the partnerships. The partnerships have borrowed an aggregate of
$52,250 of non-recourse loans from Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB, an entity related to Lehman Brothers Inc.
These borrowings are secured by the partnerships’ hotels. In fiscal year 2002, we received an aggregate of
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$700 in management fees from these hotels. Our review as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 indicated that the
future projected cash flows from the partnerships’ hotels were not sufficient to allow us to recover our
investment in these partnerships. Accordingly, in 2002, we recorded an impairment charge of $2,704 and in
2003, we recorded an impairment charge of $4,476, reducing the combined net book value of the investment
and a note receivable to zero.

Related parties, as defined in SFAS 57 “Related Party Disclosures,” include MeriStar Hospitality, the hotels
included in our real estate’joint ventures, and a small number of our hotels that are affiliated with certain of
our directors. Total management fees from related parties amounted to $31,180, $30,254, and $14,431 for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

15. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

1999 Equity Incentive Plan — The 1999 Equity Incentive Plan provides for long-term incentives to be
awarded to eligible employees through grants of restricted stock and grants of stock options to purchase shares
of common stock. The options generally vest over a three-year period and expire after 10 years.

In February 2001, the Board of Directors approved the repricing of all outstanding options to purchase shares
of our Class A Common Stock. Under the terms of the repricing, each optionee was given the right to elect to
keep their original stock options at the stated exercise price of $4.50, or to return 40% of their original stock
options and retain the 60% remaining stock options with a new exercise price of $2.00. Giving effect to the
merger, at August 1, 2002, the exercise price became $2.17. As a result of the repricing, an aggregate of
939,500 stock options granted on July 15, 1999, August 9, 1999, September 13, 1999 and September 28, 1999
were cancelled and replaced with 563,700 stock options at an exercise price of $2.17. Therefore, the original
stock options previously accounted for under the provisions of APB No. 25 are now accounted for under
variable plan accounting in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transac-
tions Involving Stock Compensation.” For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003, we incurred a non-
cash expense of $1,016 and $125, respectively, as the closing market price for our common stock at
December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003 was above the exercise price of $2.17. As the shares fully vested in
2003 there is no non-cash expense in 2004.

Employee Equity Incentive Plan — We have an equity incentive plan that authorizes us to issue and award
options for up to 15% of the number of outstanding shares of our common stock. We may grant awards under
the plan to directors, officers, or other key employees. These options vest in three annual installments
beginning on the date of grant and on subsequent anniversaries. Options granted under the plan are exercisable
for 10 years from the grant date. The number of shares remaining for issuance under this plan is 1,937,811 at
December 31, 2004.

Director’s Plan — We also have an equity incentive plan for non-employee directors that authorizes us to issue
and award options for up to 500,000 shares of common stock. These options vest in three annual installments
beginning on the date of grant and on subsequent anniversaries, provided the eligible director continues to serve
as a director on each such anniversary. Options granted under the plan are exercisable for 10 years from the
grant date. The number of shares remaining for issuance under this plan is 296,500 at December 31, 2004.

Stock option activity under each plan is as follows:

1999 Equity Employee Equity
Incentive Plan Incentive Plan Directors’ Plan
Average Average Average
Number of Option Number of Option Number of Option
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Balance, December 31, 2000 . . 977,960 4.89 726,670 16.25 19,500 17.30
Granted.................. 546,204 2.18 366,850 3.55 6,000 10.00
Exercised ................ (3,680) 2.17 (400) 11.80 — —
Cancelled ................ (918,344) 4.86 (102,556) 16.95 — —
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1999 Equity Employee Equity
Incentive Plan Incentive Plan Directors’ Plan
Average Average Average
Number of Option Number of Option Number of Option
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Balance, December 31, 2001 .. 602,140  $2.51 990,564  $11.50 25,500  $15.60
Granted.................. — — 331,966 4.00 55,500 3.25
Exercised ................ (241,132) 2.17 — — — —
Cancelled ................ (46,368) 298  (156,659)  15.09 — —
Balance, December 31, 2002 .. 314,640 2.66 1,165,871 8.92 81,000 7.13
Granted.................. — — 247,500 4.80 87,500 475
Exercised ................ (63,456) 229  (155,067)  3.39 — —
Cancelled ................ (352) 217 (59,066) 14.94 — —
Balance, December 31, 2003 .. 250,632 2.76 1,199,238 8.41 168,500 5.57
Granted.................. 50,000 5.44 230,000 5.52 40,000 5.35
Exercised ................ (41,379) 217 (187,333)  3.92 — —
Cancelled ................ (17,869) 2.87 (120,002)  15.90 (5,000) 4.75

Balance, December 31, 2004 .. 241,384  $3.39 1,121,703 $ 7.76 203,500 § 5.55

Options exercisable at

December 31, 2004 ........ 191,384 2.85 752,540 9.08 103,503 6.52
Options exercisable at _
December 31, 2003 ........ 314,640 2.66 845,871 10.79 28,500 14.27
Options exercisable at -
December 31,2002 ........ 384,132 3.55 530,670 16.35 13,501 17.50
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004:
Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$2.00-$3.25 ... 282,544 5.92 $ 2.67 250,444 2.60
$3.25-8400 ...l 280,050 71.25 3.64 246,718 3.60
$4.00-$5.00 ... ...l 299,490 7.59 4.45 181,161 4.47
$5.00-86.00 ... . ... ... 352,150 9.13 5.48 17,151 5.03
$9.00-$16.50 ... ... ... 278,013 3.81 1451 278,013 14.51
$16.50-$24.00 ................... 74,340 3.12 21.32 74,340 21.32
$2.00-$24.00 .................... 1,566,587 6.69 $ 680 1047827 $ 771

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Insurance Matters — As part of our management services to a hotel owner, we generally obtain casualty
{workers’ compensation and liability) insurance coverage for the hotel. In December 2002, one of the carriers
we used to obtain casualty insurance coverage was downgraded significantly by rating agencies. In January
2003, we negotiated a transfer of that carrier’s current policies to a new carrier. We are working with the
prior carrier to facilitate a timely and efficient close-out of the claims outstanding under the prior carrier’s
casualty policies. The prior carrier has primary responsibility for settling those claims from its assets. If the
prior carrier’s assets are not sufficient to settle these outstanding claims, and the claims exceed amounts
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available under state guaranty funds, we may be required to settle those claims. Although we are indemnified
under our management agreements for such amounts, we would be responsible contractually for claims in
historical periods when we leased certain hotels. Based on the information currently available, we believe the
ultimate resolution of this situation will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or liquidity.

Leases — We lease apartments for our corporate housing division and office space for our corporate offices.
Future minimum lease payments required under these operating leases as of December 31, 2004 were as
follows:

2005 ... R AP $38,884
2006 . . 10,239
2007 e 7,385
2008 . e 6,312
2000 . 5,639
Thereafter . oo e 14,892
Total . o e $83,351

In the course of normal business activities, various lawsuits, claims and proceedings have been or may be

instituted or asserted against us. Based on currently available facts, we believe that the disposition of matters

pending or asserted will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of

operations or liquidity. ,

Management Agreement Commitments — Under the provisions of management agreements with certain hotel >
owners, we are obligated to provide an aggregate of $2,719 to these hotel owners in the form of investments or
loans. The timing of future investments or working capital loans to hotel owners is currently unknown as it is
at the hotel owner’s discretion.

Termination fees — MeriStar Hospitality’s taxable subsidiaries have the right to terminate a management
agreement for a hotel upon the sale of the hotel to a third party or if the hotel is destroyed and not rebuilt after
a casualty. In the event of termination, MeriStar Hospitality’s taxable subsidiary will be required to pay us a
termination fee equal to the present value of the remaining payments as provided in our amended agreement
described above. The termination fee will be paid in 48 equal monthly installments, without interest,
commencing the month following the termination. MeriStar Hospitality’s taxable subsidiaries will be able to
credit against any termination payments the present value of projected fees calculated in accordance with the
amended agreement of any new management agreements executed during the 30-month period following the
termination date. MeriStar Hospitality has, since January 1, 2004, sold 21 hotels, 20 of which we no longer
manage.

17. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2004 2003 2002
Cash paid for interest and income taxes:
Interest . . $6,968  $8,935  $6,572
INCOME LAKES .« . v vttt ettt e e e e e e e e $2,426  $2,163  $2,443

In connection with the acquisition of Sunstone, we recorded a note payable of $2,000 and recognized deferred
tax liability of $1,337.

18. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND MINORITY INTERESTS

Common Stock — Prior to the merger on July 31, 2002, we had Class A, Class B and Class C common stock.
Each holder of the common stock was entitled to one vote for each share. No stockholders had cumulative
voting rights or preemptive, subscription or redemption rights.
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We accounted for the MeriStar-Old Interstate merger on July 31, 2002 as a purchase of MeriStar by Old
Interstate using the purchase method of accounting. The merger was accounted for as a reverse acquisition
with Old Interstate as the accounting acquirer, and MeriStar as the surviving company for legal purposes. As
a result, MeriStar’s stock is our common stock outstanding subsequent to the merger, In conjunction with the
merger, we had the following transactions affecting common stock:

« MeriStar issued 37,188,574 (pre-reverse split) shares of its common stock.
« The preferred stock and the convertible notes were converted into MeriStar’s Class A common stock.
« Upon completion of the merger, we effected a one-for-five reverse split of our common stock.

As of December 31, 2004, 30,629,519 shares are issued and outstanding. Each holder of common stock is
entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, in a public equity offering, we offered 8,500,000 shares of our common
stock, par value $0.01 per share, at a price of $5.25 per share. On December 16, 2003, the underwriters
exercised their over-allotment option for an additional 601,900 shares. Total shares issued in the offering were
9,109,900. Our total proceeds from this equity offering, prior to deducting expenses, amounted to approxi-
mately $45,276, after the underwriting discount. These proceeds were used to repay indebtedness under our
senior credit facility.

Treasury Stock — In October 2002, we authorized the repurchase of up to 5,000,000 shares. During 2003 we
repurchased 5,000 shares at a total cost of $23.

Operating Partnership Units — Interstate Operating Company, L.P., our subsidiary operating partnership,
(formerly named MeriStar H&R Operating Company, L.P.,) indirectly holds substantially all of our assets.
We are the sole general partner of that partnership. We, one of our directors, our chief accounting officer, and
approximately 60 independent third-parties are limited partners of that partnership. The partnership
agreement gives the general partner full control over the business and affairs of the partnership. The
agreement also gives us, as general partner, the right, in connection with the contribution of property to the
partnership or otherwise, to issue additional partnership interests in the partnership in one or more classes or
series. These interests may have such designations, preferences and participating or other special rights and
powers, including rights and powers senior to those of the existing partners, as we may determine.

The partnership currently has Class A units of limited partnership interests outstanding. As of December 31,
2004, the ownership of the limited partnership units was as follows:

+ We and our wholly owned subsidiaries own a number of Class A units equal to the number of outstanding
shares of our common stock; and '

e Other limited partners own 240,344 Class A units.

As of March 31, 2004, we had 78,431 preferred units outstanding in our subsidiary operating partnership,
Interstate Operating Company, L.P. The preferred units were held by an affiliate of Mahmood J. Khimji, one
of our directors. On May 3, 2004, we redeemed all 78,431 preferred units for cash consideration, totaling
$1,310, at a redemption price of $16.70 per unit, which was paid to Mr. Khimji’s affiliates. The preferred units
were included in minority interests on our balance sheet at March 31, 2004.

We did not make any distributions during 2004, 2003 or 2002 to the holders of the Class A units. All net
income and capital proceeds received by the partnership, after payment of the annual preferred return and, if
applicable, the liquidation preference, will be shared by the holders of the Class A units and Class B units in
proportion to the number of units owned by each holder.

The holders of each Class A unit not held by us or one of our subsidiaries may redeem for cash equal to the
value of one share of our common stock or, at our option, one share of our common stock.
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19. INSURANCE

We make available certain insurance coverage to our managed hotels under the terms of each individual
management agreement. This insurance is arranged through third-party carriers. Northridge Insurance
Company, our subsidiary, reinsures a portion of certain of the coverages from these third-party primary
insurers. These policies provide for layers of coverage with minimum deductibles and annual aggregate limits.
These policies are for coverage relating to innkeepers’ losses (general/comprehensive liability),
garagekeeper’s legal liability, and real and personal property insurance.

All accounts of Northridge are classified with assets and liabilities of a similar nature in our consolidated
balance sheets. Amounts restricted due to statutory requirements consist of cash and cash equivalents of
$3,000 and $1,421 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These amounts are included in restricted
cash in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The consolidated statements of operations include the
insurance income earned and related insurance expenses incurred. The insurance income earned is included
in other fees in the consolidated statements of operations.

We are liable for costs of the IHC Employee Health and Welfare Plan, which was closed in March 2004 and
provided certain employees with group health insurance benefits. We expect the runoff liability to
approximate $674 and $2,432 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These amounts are recorded as
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Our Associates Benefits Choices plan provides healthcare benefits for the majority of our employees. The

estimated extended liability reserve for this plan was approximately $7,339 as of December 31, 2004, The

majority of this liability is related to property-level employees, the cost of which is reimbursed to us by the 53
hotel owners. In addition, Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary, maintains benefit

plans for all of its employees at the property level. The estimated extended liability reserve for these plans was

$9,246 at December 31, 2004. These amounts are reflected as liabilities on our balance sheet.

20. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We maintain two defined contribution savings plans for our employees. Eligibility for participation in the plans
is based on an employee meeting certain minimum age and service requirements. Employer matching
contributions are based on a percentage of employee contributions. Participants may make voluntary, pre-tax
contributions through salary deferrals to the plan in which they participate. We incurred expenses related to
employees at our corporate offices of approximately $138, $170, and $250 for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, relating to only one of the plans.

In 2002 and 2003, we maintained two deferred compensation plans for certain executives and hotel general
managers by depositing amounts into trusts for the benefit of the participating employees. In 2004, our IHC
General Managers retirement plan was terminated and the participants were paid out. Deposits into the
trusts are expensed and amounted to $311, $273, and $231 and for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively. Amounts in the trusts earn investment income, which serves to increase the
corresponding deferred compensation obligation. Investments, which are recorded at market value, are
directed by us or the participants, and consist principally of mutual funds. Unrealized gains and losses were
not significant at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Executive Real Estate Plan — As of March 2004, we have formed an Executive Real Estate Fund. The fund
will allow certain employees to invest in each real estate acquisition we make, in an amount equal to 5% of
our investment for each acquisition. We expect the initial fund to consist of approximately $1,000 of capital
contributed by eligible employees. We will contribute 1.5 times the amounts contributed by employees. Our
matching contribution as of December 31, 2004 was approximately $600. Our matching contributions vest
over five years (20% per year). Each of the approximately 70 eligible employees may contribute approxi-
mately between 8.2% and 14% of their base salary to the fund.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. INCOME TAXES

Our effective income tax expense (benefit) rate for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002
differs from the federal statutory income tax rate as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Statutory tax Tate .. ... vttt e (350)% (35.0)% (35.0)%
State and local taxes. ... .. (2.2) 301 (2.9)
Foreign subsidiaries rate and losses without benefit ............... 1.5 501.9 0.2
Business meals and entertainment .......... . ... ... ..., 1.2 9.7 0.1
MiInority INterest . ... .ot — (13.5) —
Tax credits . . ..o e (31.9)  (282.0) (2.9)
Valuation allowance ....... ... .. .. i 322 177.1 26.5
Nondeductible eXpenses . . ...t — 129.5 —
O her . e 3.2 120.7 11.2

BLO)%  638.5%  (2.8)%

The components of income tax expense (benefit) are as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Current:

Federal ........... o $ (250) § 250 $§ -

S ot 300 450 1,236

Foreign .. oo 174 1,847 1,000

224 2,547 2,236

Deferred:

Federal ... .. .. (1,511) 1,314 (2,948)

AL oot (494) (183) (421)

(2,005) 1,131 (3,369)
$(1,781)  $3,678  $(1,133)
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The tax effects of the temporary differences and carryforwards that give rise to our net deferred tax asset
(liability) at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

2004 2003
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ............. ... ... ... .. ... $ — 3 198
Minority interest temporary difference ................. ... L. 2,019 1,953
Net operating loss carryforward . .......... .. ... .. ... ... . ... .. ..., 26,683 27,033
ACCTUCd EXPENSES . « . vttt ettt e 3,107 3,019
Asset basis differences. .. ... .. 7,556 1,814
, Tax credits . ... 7,072 4,226

Total gross deferred tax assets ........ ... iiiiiii i, 46,437 38,243
Less: valuation allowance ........... ... ... it (13,637) (11,787)

‘Net deferred tax assets ...t 32,800 26,456
Deferred tax liabilities:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........... .. ... ... ... L. (52) —
Depreciation and amortization eXpense ............coovverrneennnenn.. (10,271) (5,480)
Equity in investee 10SSes .. ... ..ottt (2,953) (1,323)
Prepaid expense .. ... (156) (454)
Other . (1,056) (526) 55

Total gross deferred tax liabilities ........... ... ... ... ... ... ..... (14,488) (7,783)
Net deferred tax asset . ... ...ttt e $ 18,312 $ 18,673

As of December 31, 2004, we had net operating loss carryforwards available from pre-merger periods of
$23,653, after considering statutory usage limitations. These carryforwards begin to expire in 2018. At
December 31, 2004, we had net operating loss carryforwards available from post-merger periods of $43,053
that begin to expire in 2023. We have a valuation allowance to reduce the carrying value of pre-merger net
operating losses and federal income tax credit carryforwards to our best estimate of what is more likely than
not to be realized. The change in our valuation allowance was ($1,850) from 2003 to 2004 and ($1,020) from
2002 to 2003,
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22. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table sets forth certain items included in our consolidated financial statements for each quarter
of the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

First Second Third Fourth

2004:
Total TEVENUES . .. vt e e $236,053  $253,304 $249.278  $205,408
Net income (loss) from continuing operations. . . (3,480) (1,678) (300) 1,539
Net loss from discontinued operations.......... (264) (973) — (507)
Net income (10SS) ......cvvviivinnna... $ (3,744) $ (2,651) $ (300) $ 1,032
Basic earnings (loss) per common share from

continuing operations ... ................... $ (0.11) $ (006) $§ (0.01) $ 0.05
Basic loss per common share from discontinued

OPETALIONS . v\ ove et et oe e (0.01) (0.03) — (0.02)
Basic earnings (loss) per commons share....... $ (0.12) $ (0.09) $§ (0.01) $ 0.03
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share from

continuing operations . ...........c.o.vevvn... $ (0.11) $ (006) $ (0.01) $ 005
Diluted loss per common share from

discontinued operations ... ................. {0.01) (0.03) — (0.02)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share. ... .. $ (012) $ (0.09) $ (0.01) $ 0.03
2003:
Total revenues ........... ..., $241,118  $243,317  $251,353  $226,378
Operating income (loss) ..................... (3,047) 2,357 2,504 (1,885)
Net income (loss) available to common

stockholders for continuing operations. ....... 4,805 (48) 82 (6,874)
Net loss from discontinued operations. . . .. P (376) (439) (460) (1,141)
Net income (l0SS) ..o, $ 4429 $ (487) $ (378) $ (8,015
Basic earnings (loss) per common share from

continuing operations .. .................... $ 023 $ (000) $ (0.00) $ (028
Basic loss per common share from discontinued

OPETALIONS & .ottt et ie e e e, (0.01) (0.02) (0.02) (0.05)
Basic earnings (loss) per commons share. ...... $§ 022 $§ (0.02) $§ (0.02) $§ (0.33)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share from

continuing operations...................... $§ 023 $§ (000) $ (0.00) $ (0.28)
Diluted loss per common share from

discontinued operations ... ................. (0.02) $ (0.02) $ (0.02) $ (0.05)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share...... $ 021 $ (0.02) $ (0.02) $ (0.33)

We also identified and corrected several immaterial errors from the prior periods in the fourth quarter of 2004,
the net effect which decreased administrative and general expenses by approximately $439.

23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Hotel Acquisition — On February 14 , 2005, we acquired the 329-room Hilton Concord in San Francisco,
California, East Bay. The purchase price was $29,150 or $88.6 a room. We financed a portion of the
acquisition with a $19,000 mortgage loan provided by Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company. The
balance of the acquisition price was funded with a combination of cash on hand and borrowings under the
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Company’s new credit facility. The purchase of the hotel increased our leverage and decreased our liquidity.
Therefore, on February 4, 2005, we amended and restated our senior secured credit facility in order to give us
greater flexibility on the related covenant tests. This amendment is effective through May 15, 2005, at which
time we will be required to be in compliance with the original covenants. We are currently reviewing several
options and we expect to be in compliance with our covenants by May 15, 2005.

Departure of Directors or Principal Officers; Election of Directors;, Appointment of Principal Officers — On
January 27, 2005, Robert J. Morse, Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc¢.’s Chief Operating Officer, announced
that he will be resigning from his position at Interstate effective on or about February 25, 2005.

Effective February 17, 2005, Steven D. Jorns resigned as Chief Executive Officer of Interstate Hotels &
Resorts, Inc. and became the full-time managing director of our Interstate Real Estate Investment Fund,
which currently is under development. We are currently determining what, if any, amendments are necessary
to Mr. Jorns’ employment agreement.

On February 17, 2005, Thomas F. Hewitt was named Chief Executive Officer of Interstate Hotels & Resorts,
Inc. Mr. Hewitt, who is 61 years old, joined our board of directors in July 2002. Mr. Hewitt was Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Interstate Hotels Corporation from March 1999 until July 2002. Mr. Hewitt
previously was Chief Operating Officer of Carnival Resorts & Casinos, where he headed all hotel and resort
operations.

Mr. Hewitt is a party to a severance agreement with us that was signed in connection with our merger with

Interstate Hotels Corporation in 2002. Pursuant to the severance agreement, he receives monthly payments of

$75 from August 2002 through January 2006. The agreement also provides that Mr. Hewitt will receive

employee benefits similar to the employee benefits he had as of the merger (excluding retirement, stock 57
option, stock purchase, deferred compensation, or other compensation benefits) through January 30, 2006.

Mr. Hewitt also receives under the agreement a monthly car allowance of $0.7 per month, plus reimbursement

of certain other out-of-pocket expenses. At the merger date, we agreed, effective June 2005, to forgive a $400

loan and to partially forgive a $259 loan made to Mr. Hewitt prior to the merger. We have not yet finalized

the terms of Mr. Hewitt’s employment agreement.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate and effective internal control over
financial reporting for Interstate Hotels and Resorts, Inc. (the “Company”). Internal control over financial
reporting refers to the process designed by, or under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, and effected by our Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statement
for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and includes those
policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance for the prevention or detection of
misstatements within the Company’s financial reporting because of its inherent limitations. Internal control
over financial reporting is a process that involves human judgment and requires diligence and compliance to
prevent errors. Internal control over financial reporting can also be circumvented by collusion or improper
management override. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the
financial reporting process and it is possible to design safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk.

Management has used the framework set forth in the report titled “Internal Control — Integrated Frame-
work,” published by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (“COSO”’) of the Treadway Commission, to
evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Management has
concluded that, as of December 31, 2004, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was
effective. KPMG LLP has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting herein.

The Company purchased Sunstone Hotel Properties, Inc. (“Sunstone’’) in the fourth quarter of 2004. As this
acquisition was late in the year the acquisition did not have a material impact on the Company’s 2004 results
of operations or financial condition. Therefore, the Company did not evaluate the internal control over
financial reporting of Sunstone and is excluding those controls from management’s assessment given in this
report. Management will evaluate the design and effectiveness of Sunstone’s internal control over financial
reporting in 2005. ‘

/s/  Thomas F. Hewitt

Thomas F. Hewitt
Chief Executive Officer

/s/  William J. Richardson

William J. Richardson
Chief Financial Officer
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Set forth in the following tables are summary historical consolidated financial and other data as of and for each
of the last five fiscal years.

The merger between MeriStar and Old Interstate on July 31, 2002 was accounted for as a reverse acquisition
with Old Interstate as the accounting acquirer and MeriStar as the surviving company for legal purposes. As a
result, the historical financial information we present in the table below, and in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, represent the financial data for Old Interstate prior to the merger, and for
the combined company following the merger.

Selected Financial and Other Data

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue:

Lodging revenue(l) ...t $ 3281 § 339 § 2908 § 4426 $ 203472

Management fees .......... ... . ... ... 32,765 33,929 25,457 21,479 29,481

Management fees — related parties ........... 31,180 30,254 14,431 3,046 —

Corporate housing ............... ... 110,620 102,773 43,068 — —

Otherrevenue ............. ... ... ... .. 14,305 15,330 17,313 15,074 13,159

192,151 185,682 103,177 44,025 246,112 59
Other revenue from managed properties(4) .. .. 751,892 776,484 490,666 274,801 287,941
Total revenue . ..., $ 944,043 $ 962,166 $§ 593,843 $318,826 § 534,053

Loss from continuing operations ................ $ (3919) $ (2,035 § (36316) §$ (7,350) $ (8,903)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations(2) ... (1,744) (2,416) 145 — —
Net1oss oo (5,663) (4,451) (36,171) (7,350) (8,903)
Mandatory redeemable preferred stock:

Dividends . ... — — 307 634 127

ACCTEtion ...t — — 356 62 12

Conversion incentive payments ............... — — 1,943 — —
Net loss available to common Shareholders ...... $ (5663) $ (4,451) § (38,777) § (8,046) $ (9,042)
Weighted average number of basic shares ' ' :

outstanding (in thousands): .................. 30,473 21,474 13,563 5,704 5,956
Basic earnings (loss) per share from continuing .

OPETAtions . ..o \ut $ (013 § (010) § (287 § (14§ (1.52)
Basic earnings (loss) per share from discontinued

OPETatioNS . ..\ ot e $  (006) $ (011) § 0.01 — —
Basic earnings (loss) per share ................. $ (019 $ (0.21) §  (286) § (141) § (1.52)
Weighted average number of diluted shares

outstanding (in thousands) .................. 30,473 21,474 13,563 5,704 5,956
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from continuing

OPETations . . ... ..o $  (0.13) $ (0.10) § (287) § (1.41) $ (152)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from :

discontinued operations. ..................... $ (0.06) $ (0.11) $ 0.01 C e —

Diluted earnings (loss) per share ............... $ (019) § (021) $§ (286) § (141) §  (1.52)
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Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000

2004

Balance Sheet Data (At End of Period):

Cash and cash equivalents ..................... $ 13,480
Total assets ............c i 276,614
Debt ..o 89,197
Mandatory redeemable preferred stock........... —
Total equity .......ooviii i 118,127
Total Hotel Data (unaudited):(3)

Total hotel revenue . .......................... $2,278,775
Number of managed properties ................. 306
Number of managed rooms . ................... 68,242

$ 7450 $ 7,054 $39040 § 51,327
277,923 280,681 108,669 143,523

86,321 134,239 40,981 45,163

— — 5,070 4,258

118,712 76,524 42,035 51,858
$2,143,663  $2,196,671  $999,000  $1,176,000
295 393 134 160
65,250 83,053 28,316 31,167

(1) Until January 1, 2001, we leased substantially all of our hotels from a third party. Under the leases, we recorded all of the operating
revenues and expenses of the hotels in our statements of operations. Effective January 1, 2001, in connection with changes permitted
by the REIT Modernization Act, we assigned the hotel leases to a newly created, wholly owned, taxable REIT subsidiaries, and the
taxable REIT subsidiaries entered into management agreements with us to manage the hotels. As a result of this change, we now
record onlv a management fee and our revenue does not reflect operating revenues from those hotels. As a result, our revenues for
the years ended after January 1, 2001 are not directly comparable to those for the years ended prior.

(2) Discontinued operations reflect the disposition of BridgeStreet Canada, Inc. in June 2004.

(3) Represents all properties, including the previously leased hotels, for which we provide management or related services.

(4) Other revenue from managed properties has been revised and reduced in 2004, 2003, and 2002 by $54,800, $57,306 and $3,577,
respectively. Our statements of operations includes an equal and offsetting amount — “other expense from managed properties” —
which have also been revised by the same amounts. These amounts represent the payroll and related costs of the hotels’ employees
which is contractually reimbursed to us by the hotel owners. The revisions have no impact on operating income (loss), net income

(loss), or earnings (loss) per share.
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol “THR.” As of March 1, 2005, 30,718,375 shares
of our common stock were listed and outstanding, held by approximately 2,832 record holders.

The following table lists, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the range of high and low closing prices per share of
our common stock in U.S. dollars, as reported on the NYSE Composite Transaction Tape.

Stock Price

Fiscal 2004:

FArSt QUATTET .« . . oo et e e e e e e e e $6.15  $5.21

Second Quarter . ... ... 5.86 5.10

Third QUATtEr . . . ..t s 5.39 4.05

Fourth Quarter. . .. ... 5.51 4.15
Fiscal 2003:

First Quarter. . ... ... 5.05 4.21

Second Quarter ... ... 4.93 4.16

Third QuUarter . .. ..o 5.75 4.77

Fourth Quarter. .. ... .. .. 6.75 5.00

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock, and we do not anticipate that we will do so in the
foreseeable future. We intend to retain earnings, if any, to provide funds for the continued growth and

development of our business. Any determination to pay cash dividends in the future will be at the discretion of 61
the Board of Directors and will be dependent upon lender approval as well as our results of operations,

financial condition, contractual restrictions and other factors deemed relevant by the Board of Directors.
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CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
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STOCKHOLDER INQUIRIES

For information about Interstate Hotels & Resorts,
Inc.. and its subsidiaries, including copies of its
annual report on Form 10-K and quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, please submit a written request to
Corporate Secretary, Interstate Hotels & Resorts,

Inc., 4501 N. Fairfax Drive, Arlington, VA 22203.

ANNUAL MEETING DATE

Interstate Hotels & Resorts will hold its annual

meeting of stockholders on June | at 9 a.m. at
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Drive, Arlington, VA 22203.

INTERNET COMMUNICATIONS
A Company overview, financial highlights, statistical
data, recent press releases, property locations and

other information about the Company may be

tound on the World Wide Web at www.ihrco.com.
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